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BALANCE SHEET as At marcH 31, 2024
T in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars NoteS  warch31,2024  March 31,2023
ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets

(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 249,108 265,154
(b) Right—of—use assets 3(b) 48,547 53,733
(c) Investment Property 3() 2,965 3,033
(d) Other Intangible Assets 3(d) 99 93
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 - -
(ii) Others 5 6,774 6,426
()  Other Non—current Taxes 6 13,374 10,168
(9) Other Non—current Assets 7 3,325 3,217
324,192 341,824
(2) Current Assets
(@) Inventories 8 402 447
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 9 7,368 6,877
(i) Trade Receivables 10 31,642 13,074
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 11,167 49,636
(iv) Bank Balances other than (i) above 12 123 119
(v) Others 13 9,152 9,656
(¢) Current Tax Assets 14 - -
(d) Other Current Assets 15 6,558 5,450
96,412 85,259
Total Assets 420,604 427,083
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@) Equity Share Capital 16 1,280,702 1,267,110
(b) Other Equity 17 (1,789,358) (1,721,184)
(508,656) (454,074)
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 - -
(ia) Lease Liabilities 46,382 50,783
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 19 1,800 2,023
(b) Provisions 20 5,897 5,384
(c) Other non—current Liabilities 21 864 1,144
54,943 59,334
(2) Current Liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 333,951 367,073
(ia) Lease Liabilities 9,725 10,212
(i) Trade Payables 23
— total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 192 125
— total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 3,015 4,214
small enterprises
(iii) Others Financial Liabilities 24 512,397 426,969
(b) Other Current Liabilities 25 9,944 8,322
(c) Provisions 26 5,093 4,908
874,317 821,823
Total Equity and Liabilities 420,604 427,083
Significant Accounting Policies 2
Notes to the Financial Statements 31060
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For CVK & Associates Vikas Arora Manoj Tirodkar
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chairman
Firm Regd. No. 101745W DIN-09785527 DIN-00298407
Shriniwas Y. Joshi Bhupendra Kiny
Partner Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 032523
Nitesh Mhatre
Mumbai Company Secretary
Date: May 14, 2024 Membership No:A18487
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS For THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Zin Lakhs
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Notes ended on ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

INCOME :
Revenue from Operations 27 137,201 145,786
Other Income 28 5,124 2,747
Total Income 142,325 148,533
EXPENSES :
Infrastructure Operation & Maintenance Cost 29 79,518 81,775
Employee Benefits Expense 30 7,177 6,340
Finance Costs 31 80,509 78,193
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 3 27,799 50,357
Balances Written Off (Net) and Provision for Trade Receivables and Advances 32 4,049 9,549
Exchange Differences (Net) 33 436 3,955
Other Expenses 34 9,430 41,401
Total Expenses 208,918 271,570
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX (66,593) (123,037)
Exceptional [tem 1,543 58,654
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (68,136) (181,691)
Tax Expenses - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (68,136) (181,691)

Other Comprehensive Income
(&) () Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

(i) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 38 9)
(B) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income (38) 9
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (68,174) (181,682)
Earnings Per Equity Share of X 10 each 42
Basic and Diluted (0.52) (1.41)
Significant Accounting Policies 2
Notes to the Financial Statements 31060
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For CVK & Associates Vikas Arora Manoj Tirodkar
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chairman
Firm Regd. No. 101745W DIN-09785527 DIN-00298407
Shriniwas Y. Joshi Bhupendra Kiny
Partner Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 032523

Nitesh Mhatre
Mumbai Company Secretary
Date: May 14, 2024 Membership No: A18487
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT roR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Zin Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (68,136) (181,691)
ADJUSTED FOR

Depreciation and amortization expenses 27,799 50,357
Loss on Dismantling/Sale/Retirement of Fixed Assets (Net) 52 33,358
Interest Income (319) (1,023)
Finance Costs 80,509 78,193
Extinguishment of liabilities (3,552) (39)
Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss (Net) 436 3,955
Difference on measurement of financial instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss (490) (349)
Exceptional ltems 1,543 58,654
Balances Written off (Net of Provision written back) (2,780) (2,405)
Provision for Trade Receivables and Advances 6,829 11,954
Miscellaneous Income on Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) & Lease (167) (726)
Rent Income (259) (259)
Prepaid Rent amortization 136 153
Advance revenue on deposits (209) (320)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGE 41,392 49,812
ADJUSTMENTS FOR

Trade and Other Receivables (24,322) (10,500)
Inventories 45 22
Trade and Other Payables 5,634 13,911
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 22,649 53,245
Taxes paid/refund received (Net) (3,206) (3,788)
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 19,443 49,457
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) (3,384) (6,623)
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 1,615 2,175
Interest Received 261 780
Rent Received 259 259
NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,249) (3,409)
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3 in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Long—Term—Borrowings (14,000) (33,500)
Payment towards principal portion of lease liability (8,005) (6,903)
Payment towards interest portion of lease liability (4,646) (4,880)
Fixed Deposits with Banks pledged as Margin Money and others (12) 8)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (26,663) (45,291)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (8,469) 757
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 49,636 48,879
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)* 41,167 49,636

*  The above balance includes ¥ 13,277 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 13,591) which are earmarked towards expenditures & Capex
as per TRA mechanism.

(i)  The cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS — 7 “Cash Flow Statements’’.
Figures in bracket indicate outflows.

(i) Following transactions not involving cash flow are not considered for preparation of above cash flow statement:
(a) Increase in share capital and Other Equity of ¥ 13,592 Lakhs (X 152 Lakhs previous Year) on account of conversion of
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds—Series B2

(iiiy Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities on account of non—current and current borrowings (including current
maturities of non—current borrowings)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 367,073 402,977
Change from financing cash flows paid (14,000) (33,500)
Changes on account of conversion to equity and extinguishment (17,144) (152)
Changes on account of Reduction in debt due to sale of pledged Shares invoked - (2,010)
by Lenders
Changes on account of changes in foreign exchange rates 519 5,365
Changes on account of measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (2,496) (5,608)
Closing Balance 333,951 367,073
(iv) Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current year.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For CVK & Associates Vikas Arora Manoj Tirodkar
Chartered Accountants Whole Time Director Chairman
Firm Regd. No. 101745W DIN-09785527 DIN-00298407
Shriniwas Y. Joshi Bhupendra Kiny
Partner Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 032523
Nitesh Mhatre
Mumbai Company Secretary
Date: May 14, 2024 Membership No: A18487
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

GTL Infrastructure Limited (GIL, the Company, erstwhile
standalone Company) is domiciled and incorporated in India
under the provision of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares
are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock
Exchange in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at Global Vision, 3" Floor, Electronic Sadan II, MIDC
TTC Industrial Area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai— 400 710, India.

The Company is in the business of passive infrastructure
sharing which is based on building, owning, operating and
maintaining passive telecom infrastructure sites capable of
hosting active network components of various technologies
of multiple telecom operators as well providing energy
management solutions.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

e  Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

e Defined Benefit Plans— measured at Fair Value

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and underlying assumptions.
Actual results could vary from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future years.

The Company’s financial statements are presented in
lakhs of Indian Rupees (INR) which is its functional and
presentation currency. All values are rounded off to the
nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated.

2 (A) Material Accounting Policies
2.1. Property, Plant & Equipment

(@) Property, plant and equipment, including Capital work
in progress are stated at cost, net of recoverable
taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such
cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost, any
cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use apportioned
based on predetermined ratio, net changes on
foreign exchange contracts and arrangements
arising from exchange rate variations attributable to
the assets and the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located. On transition to Ind AS, the
Company had elected to continue with the previous
GAAP carrying values as deemed cost for all items of
property, plant and equipment.

(b) The tangible assets at the cellular sites, which are ready
to use in the first fifteen days of a month are capitalised
on the fifteenth day of that month, whereas, if they are
ready to use in the second half of a month, they are
capitalised on the last day of that month

2.2

(c) Advances paid towards acquisition of property, plant
& equipment are disclosed as Capital Advances
under Loans and Advances.

(d) Depreciation onfollowing assets is provided to the extent
of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method over the
useful life of the assets as prescribed in schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following
Fixed Assets where the assessed useful life is different
than that prescribed in Schedule I.

Asset Years
Network Operation Assets 9
Air Conditioners 9
Battery Bank 3
Other Electrical and Power Supply Equipment 9
Office Equipment 3
Furniture and fittings 5
Vehicles 5
Diesel Generators 15
Boundary Wall 10-58
Shelter 9

The management believes that the useful lives as
given above represent the period over which these
assets are expected to be used.

(e) The towers have been depreciated on straight line
method at the rate of 2.72% per annum based on
useful life of 35 years in terms of specific approval
received from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India vide Order no. 45/2/2010—
CL-IIl dated May 26, 2010 issued under Section
205(2)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956.The approval
continues to be valid vide letter no.51/9/2014—CL—
Il dated September 19, 2014 received from Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

(f)  Further, in respect of Fixed Assets whose actual cost
does not exceed ¥ 5,000, depreciation is provided at
100% in the year of addition

(9) The leasehold improvements have been depreciated
over the lease period.

(h)  The revised carrying amount of the assets identified
as impaired have been depreciated over residual
useful life of the respective assets

() The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

()  Gains or losses arising from disposal (dismantling/sale/
retirement/loss due to theft by unknown miscreants) of
tangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is disposed.

(k) Insurance Claims for loss of material are accounted
upon receipt of the same.

Investment Properties

Property that is held for long—term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Company, is classified as investment property. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
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2.3.

2.4,

investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on investment properties is provided using
straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
Residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of
investment properties are reviewed at each financial year
end and impact of change, if any is adjusted prospectively.
The effects of any revision are included in the statement of
profit and loss when the changes arise.

Though the Company measures investment properties
using cost—based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have
been disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from
their disposal. The difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised
in statement of profit and loss in the period of de—recognition.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of
recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost, and any cost directly attributable to bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use. On
transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue
with the previous GAAP carrying values as deemed cost.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss
when the asset is derecognised.

The Company amortises intangible assets using the
straightline method based on useful lives estimated by
the management as mentioned below:

Computer Software 3 years
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets including
Investment property

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether
there is any indication that any property, plant & equipment
and intangible asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating
Units (CGUs) to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the Statement of profit and loss. The impairment loss
recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
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2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value,
whichever is lower. The valuation is determined based
on recent prices and includes cost of purchase and other
expenses incurred in bringing inventories to their present
location and condition as applicable. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise
cash at banks, on hand, cheques in hand, funds in transit
and short—term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

) Financial assets
A. Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which
are not at fair value through profit or loss are adjusted
to the fair value on initial recognition; however, trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price
Purchase and sale of financial asset are recognised
using trade date accounting i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

B. Subsequent measurement
i)  Financial Assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at
amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
the contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on the specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss. This category applies to Trade and
other receivables, Security deposits, Other advance,
Loan, Unbilled Income, Interest Receivable etc.

ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at Fair
Value through other Comprehensive Income if it is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms
of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through profit or

loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the
above categories is subsequently fair valued through
profit or loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments other than investment in
Subsidiary and Associate are measured at fair value,
with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit
and loss except for those equity investments for
which the Company has elected to present the value
changes in ‘other comprehensive income’

The Company makes such election on an
instrument—by—instrument basis. The classification
is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Investment in subsidiaries and associates

The Company accounts for itsinvestments in subsidiaries
and associates at cost in financial statements

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e Therights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass—through’ arrangement and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses
‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) policy for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those
measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:

a) The 12—months expected credit losses (expected
credit losses that result from those default events
on the financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date); or

b)  Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected
credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the life of the financial instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified
approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
The Company uses historical default rates to determine
impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables.
At every reporting date these historical default rates
are reviewed and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analyzed. The Company fully provides
for receivables outstanding for over 6 months unless
collection is assured. In certain cases, it also makes
provisions for receivables outstanding for less than 6
months based on its estimates.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS )})

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to
provide for impairment loss where there is no significant
increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase
in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12 Month ECL.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, atinitial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans & borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, deposits received from customers, etc.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss
are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These
gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred
to Profit & Loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
All other changes in fair value of such liabilities
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The Company has not designated any financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss.

b) Loans and horrowings, deposits

After initial recognition, interest—bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised or through the
EIR amortisation process.

Atter initial recognition, part of interest free
deposits received from customers initially recorded
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as deposit is subsequently measured as amortised
cost and the other part recorded as advance
revenue is amortised on a straight—line basis

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition/
redemption and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

¢) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount
of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

d) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another, from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) contract that also includes a non—
derivative host contract — with the effect that some
of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a stand—alone derivative. An
embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash
flows that otherwise would be required by the contract
to be modified according to a specified interest rate,
financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or
credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a
non—financial variable that the variable is not specific
to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial
asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does
not separate embedded derivatives, Rather, it applies
the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109
to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in
all other host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated at fair value though profit or
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loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

IV. Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial
assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial
assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is
a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected
to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result
of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are
evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to
its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively
from the reclassification date which is the first day
of the immediately next reporting period following
the change in business model. The Company does
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

V. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets
and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event. It is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are discounted using
equivalent period government securities interest rate.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in
the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets
are not recognised. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

Fair value measurement

“The Company measures financial instruments at fair
value at each balance sheet date.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non—financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy.

2.10.Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue primarily consists of revenue
for use of infrastructure facilities on individual / sharing
basis and energy revenue for the provision of energy for
operations of sites.

Revenue for use of infrastructure (which is termed
as “Revenue from Telecom / Network Infrastructure
Facilities”) is governed by Ind AS 116. The same is
recognized as and when services are rendered, on
a monthly basis as per the contractual terms under
agreements entered with customers. The Company has
ascertained that the revenue for use of infrastructure
facilities is structured to increase in line with expected
inflationary increase in cost of the Company and hence,
not straight—lined.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which establishes
a comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of
revenue to be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS
115 using cumulative effect method, where any effect arising
upon application of this standard is recognised as at the date
of initial application i.e., April 1, 2018. Company’s revenue
for provision of energy for operation of sites is governed by
Ind AS 115; Company’s revenue from use of infrastructure
facilities, which is covered in leases is specifically excluded
from the Scope of Ind AS 115.

Energy revenue is recognized over the period on a
monthly basis upon satisfaction of performance obligation
as per contracts with the customers. The transaction price
is the consideration received from customers based on
prices agreed as per the contract with the customers. The
determination of standalone selling prices is not required
as the transaction prices are stated in the contract based
on the identified performance obligation.

The Company provides sharing benefits to its customers
based on slab defined in the revenue contracts. Contract
also contains clause on Service Level Agreements (SLAs)
penalty/rewards, dependent upon the achievement of
network uptime level as mentioned in the contract. The
Company estimates SLA penalty/rewards at each month
end and considers the impact of the same in the revenue.
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Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract
assets (referred as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in
excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities
(referred as unearned revenue).

Revenue from reimbursement of property tax is recognized
over the period on a monthly basis upon satisfaction
of performance obligation as per contracts with the
customers. The transaction price is the consideration
received from customers based on prices agreed as per
the contract with the customers.

Interest income

Interest Income from financial assets is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividends

Income from dividends is recognised when the Company’s
right to receive the dividend has been established.

2.11.Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

i.  Company as a lessee
Operating lease:

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted
Ind AS— 116 “Leases” under modified retrospective
approach without adjustment of comparatives and
has considered a Right of Use (ROU) Assets and
corresponding lease liabilities.

The Company recognizes right—of—use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term at the lease commencement
date. The cost of the right—of—use asset measured
at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The
right—of—use assets is subsequently measured at
costless any accumulated depreciation,accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The right—of—
use asset is depreciated from the commencement
date on a straight—line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right—of—use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if
any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses
incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably
similar characteristics, the Company may adopt the
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incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of
leases as a whole. The lease payments shall include
fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value
guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in—substance fixed lease payments.

For lease renewals previously classified as short—
term leases, the commencement date is established
as the first day of the month in which the renewal
payment is processed. Any incremental rent paid
during the renewal, for the period when it was
considered a short—term lease, is expensed in the
month when the rent payment occurs.

The Company recognises the amount of the
remeasurement of lease liability as an adjustment to
the right—of—use asset. Where the carrying amount of
the right—of—use asset is reduced to zero and there
is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount
of the re—measurement in statement of profit and loss.

The Company elects not to apply the requirements
of Ind AS 116 to short term leases or the leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease
payments associated with these leases are recognised
as expense on either a straight—line basis over lease
term or another systematic basis. The Company has
opted to recognize the asset retirement obligation
liability as part of the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment in accordance with Ind AS16.

ii. Company as a lessor
Operating lease:

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight—line basis over the lease term unless payments
to the Company are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the
Company’s expected increase in inflationary cost; such
increases are recognised in the year in which such
benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as the lease income

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

2.12.Employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short—term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by the employees are recognised as an expense
during the year when the employees render the services.
Post—Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post—employment benefit
plan under which the Company pays specified contributions
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to a separate entity. The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards Provident Fund, Pension Scheme.
The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense
in the Profit and Loss Statement during the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post—
employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit
Credit Method and spread over the period during which the
benefit is expected to be derived from employees ‘services.

Re—measurement of defined benefit plans in respect
of post—employment benefits are charged to the other
Comprehensive Income.

2.13.Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency
closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss

Non—monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

2.14.Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Interest income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.15.Taxes

Tax expense represents the sum of current tax (including
income tax for earlier years) and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity
or other comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is
also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items initially
recognised in equity or other comprehensive income is also
recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax provision is computed for income calculated after
considering allowances and exemptions under the provisions
of the applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and
current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred taxis recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward
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tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

2.16.Earnings per share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s
Earnings Per Share (EPS) is the net profit/ (loss) after tax.
The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period/year. The diluted EPS is calculated on the
same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects
of potential dilutive equity shares unless the effect of the
potential dilutive equity shares is anti—dilutive.

2.17.Current and Non-Current Classification

“The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement
of financial position based on current/non—current
classification.

The Company has presented non—current assets and
current assets before equity, non—current liabilities and
current liabilities in accordance with Schedule I, Division
Il of Companies Act, 2013 notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA).”

“An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in normal operating cycle,

b)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after
the reporting period, or

d)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non—current.”

“A liability is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
b)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non—current.”

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are classified as non—current assets and liabilities. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

2(B) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and

assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements
requires management to make judgement, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

a)

b)

c)
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Operating Lease
1. AsLessor

The Company has assessed thatits master service
agreement (“MSA”) with operators contains lease
of its tower sites and plant and equipment and
has determined, based on evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the arrangements such
as various lessees sharing the same tower sites
with specific area, the fair value of the asset and
all the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of these properties retained by the Company,
that such contracts are in the nature of operating
lease and has accounted for as such.

The Company has ascertained that the annual
escalations in the lease payment received
under the MSA are structured to compensate
the expected inflationary increase in cost and
therefore has not been straight—lined

2. AsLessee

The Company has assessed that agreements
entered with the landlords contain lease of the
underlying space based on evaluation of terms
and conditions of the contracts with landlords
and are accounted for as such under Ind AS 116

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue primarily consists of
revenue for use of infrastructure facilities (Rentals)
and energy revenue for the provision of energy for
operations of sites. Rentals are not covered within
the scope of Ind AS 115, hence identification of
distinct performance obligation within Ind AS 115 do
not involve significant judgement.

Judgement is required to determine the transaction
price for the contract. The transaction price could be
either a fixed amount of customer consideration or
variable consideration with elements such as volume
discounts, service level credits, etc. The estimated
amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is
reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The
Company provides sharing benefits to its customers
based on slab defined in the revenue contracts.
Contract also contains clause on Service Level
Agreements (SLAs) benefits/penalties dependent
upon achievement of network uptime level as
mentioned in the contract.

These benefits/SLA penalties are called variable
consideration. There is no additional impact of
variable consideration as per Ind AS 115 since
maximum benefit is already being given to customer
and the same is deducted from revenue. There
is no additional impact of SLA as the Company
already estimates SLA penalty amount and the
same is provided for at each month end. This SLA is
presented as net off with revenue in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Depreciation and useful lives of property plant
and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
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e)
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after taking into account their estimated residual
value. Management reviews the estimated useful
lives and residual values of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based
on the Company’s historical experience with
similar assets and take into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivable:

Judgements are required in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables and determining
whether a provision against those receivables
is required. Factors considered in assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables include the credit
rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing
of anticipated future payments and any possible
actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non—
payment.

Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period
when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations
or events and the amount of cash outflow can be
reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and
quantification of the liability require the application
of judgement to existing facts and circumstances,
which can be subject to change. Since the cash
outflows can take in the future years, the carrying
amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed
regularly and adjusted to take account of changing
facts and circumstances.

Impairment of non-financial assets including
investment property:

The Company assesses at each reporting date
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and
itsvaluein use. Itis determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets
or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transaction are
taken into account, if no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected cash loss. The Company uses judgement
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in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and
other post—employment benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long—term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow
(DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

Taxes

Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based on the likely timing and
the level of future taxable income together with
future tax planning strategies. The Company does
not expect availability of future taxable income
sufficient to utilise its deferred tax assets. Further
details on taxes are disclosed in note 44.

Asset retirement obligations

The Company has recognised a provision for
asset retirement obligations associated with
telecommunication towers. Such Provision is
recognised in respect of the costs for dismantling
of infrastructure equipment and restoration of sites
under operating leases, which are expected to be
incurred at the end of the lease term, based on the
estimate provided by the internal technical experts.
In determining the fair value of such provision,
assumptions and estimates are made in relation to
discount rates, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected
timing of those costs.

The Company estimates that the costs would be
incurred at the end of the lease term and calculates
the provision using the DCF method based on the
discount rate that approximates interest rate of
risk free borrowings and current estimate of asset
retirement obligation duly adjusted for expected
inflationary increase in related costs.
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3. (a) Property , Plant and Equipment (PPE)

T in Lakhs
Tangible Assets
Particular Land Buildings Plant and Office  Furniture & Vehicles  Total
Equipments Equipments  Fixtures

COST
As at April 1,2022 644 34,281 942,899 97 438 142 978,501
Additions - - 8,606 7 - - 8,613
Less: Deductions* - 5,482 134,335 - - - 139,817
As at March 31,2023 644 28,799 817,171 104 438 142 847,297
Additions - - 4,389 24 1 20 4,433
Less: Deductions* - 1,322 44,566 - - - 45,888
As at March 31,2024 644 271,477 776,993 129 438 162 805,843
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION - 26,785 314,305 65 117 92 341,363
Up to April 1, 2022
Depreciation for the Year - 805 37,517 15 82 17 38,435
Less: Deductions* - 4,805 74,951 - - - 79,755
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION - 22,785 276,871 80 199 108 300,043
Up to March 31, 2023
Depreciation for the Year - 284 16,158 15 64 15 16,536
Less: Deductions* — 1,259 28,107 — — — 29,366
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION - 21,810 264,922 95 263 123 287,213
Up to March 31,2024
IMPAIRMENT - 3,695 241,054 - - - 244,749
Up to April 1, 2022
Add: Impairment - 1,303 57,351 - - - 58,654
Less: Deductions* — 322 20,981 — — — 21,303
IMPAIRMENT Up to March 31, 2023 - 4,676 277,424 - - - 282,100
Add: Impairment - 35 1,508 - - - 1,543
Less: Deductions* — — 14,122 — — — 14,122
IMPAIRMENT Up to March 31, 2024 - 4,711 264,811 - - - 269,521
CARRYING VALUE
As at March 31,2023 644 1,338 262,876 25 239 34 265,154
As at March 31,2024 644 956 247,260 33 176 39 249,108

* Includes deduction on account of sale of scrap, receipt of insurance claim, theft of fixed assets by Landlords/unknown miscreants etc

3@

Buildings include properties having carrying value of I 490 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 504 Lakhs) for which deeds of
conveyance have yet to be executed in favour of the Company and ¥ 0.07 Lakhs (March 31,2017 X 0.07 Lakhs) towards
cost of 70 shares of T 100 each in a Co—operative Housing Society

Buildings includes Land related properties and Boundary Wall at Sites having carrying value of ¥ 4,755 Lakhs (Previous
year < 4,978 Lakhs).

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) includes assets mortgaged as security (Refer Note No. 18.2)

The Company, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 36) ‘Impairment of Assets’, performed an impairment
test based on current expectations of the impact of recent developments in telecom Sector on projected cash flows in tower
business. The Company is predominantly in the business of providing “telecom towers” on shared basis and as such there
are no separate segments. Accordingly, all these tower assets were assessed as a single Cash Generating Unit (CGU), the CGU
consists of Property, Plant and Equipment. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on a value in use calculation
using 10.75% as discount rate. The Carrying value of these assets exceeds its value in use and accordingly an impairment loss
of Building X 35 Lakhs and Plant & Equipments X 1,508 lakhs has been recognized for the year ended March 31,2024 and the
same has been disclosed as exceptional item (previous year Building ¥ 1,303 Lakhs and Plant & Equipments X 57,351 lakhs).
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3. (b)Right-of-use Assets

< in Lakhs
Particulars LU
Assets
COST
As at April 1, 2022 86,696
Additions 6,717
Less: Deductions 5,072
As at March 31,2023 88,341
Additions 6,972
Less: Deductions 7,010
As at March 31,2024 88,303
DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION / IMPAIRMENT
Up to April 1, 2022 26,476
Depreciation Charged For The Year 11,843
Less: Deductions 3,711
Upto March 31,2023 34,607
Depreciation Charged For The Year 11,156
Less: Deductions 6,008
Upto March 31, 2024 39,756
CARRYING VALUE
As at March 31,2023 53,733
As at March 31, 2024 48,547
3. (c)Investment Property
< in Lakhs
Particulars Buildings

COST
As at April 1, 2022 4,105
Additions -
Less: Deductions —
As at March 31, 2023 4,105
Additions -
Less: Deductions -
As at March 31,2024 4,105
DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION / IMPAIRMENT
Up to April 1, 2022 1,004
Depreciation Charged For The Year 68
Less: Deductions —
Upto March 31, 2023 1,072
Depreciation Charged For The Year 68
Less: Deductions —
Upto March 31,2024 1,141
CARRYING VALUE
As at March 31, 2023 3,033
As at March 31, 2024 2,965
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3(c) (i) Information regarding Income and Expenditure of Investment Property :

X in Lakhs
Particulars et Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rental Income derived from investment property 259 259
Re—imbursement of Expenses - -
Less : Direct Operating Expenses (Including repairs & maintenance) (25) (25)
generating rental income
Income arising from investment property before depreciation 233 233
Less : Depreciation for the year (68) (68)
Income from Investment Property (Net) 165 165

3 (c) (ii) The Company’s Investment Property as at March 31,2024 consists of Building as mentioned above
3 (c) (iii) The Fair Value of the Property as at March 31,2024 are ¥ 3,968 Lakhs (Previous year — X 3,968 Lakhs).

The fair value is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers
& Valuation) Rules, 2017,

The fair value measurement is categorised in Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

3 (c) (iv) Specific Charge — Banks, Financial Institutions and Asset Reconstruction Trust of the erstwhile standalone Company
continue to have specific charge.

3.(d) Intangible Assets*

X in Lakhs
Particulars S_oftware Customers Total
Licenses Contract

COST
As at April 1,2022 251 73,622 73,873
Additions 101 - 101
Less: Deductions — — —
As at March 31, 2023 353 73,622 73,975
Additions 45 - 45
Less: Deductions - - -
As at March 31,2024 398 73,622 74,020
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 248 14,427 14,675
IMPAIRMENT - 59,195 59,195
Up to April 1, 2022 -
Depreciation Charged For The Year 11 - 11
Less: Deductions - - -
Add: Impairment - - -
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION Up to March 31, 2023 259 14,427 14,686
IMPAIRMENT Up to March 31, 2023 - 59,195 59,195
Depreciation Charged For The Year 39 - 39
Less: Deductions - - -
Add: Impairment - - -
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION Up to March 31, 2024 298 14,427 14,725
IMPAIRMENT Up to March 31, 2024 - 59,195 59,195
CARRYING VALUE
As at March 31, 2023 93 - 93
As at March 31, 2024 99 - 99

*  Other than Internally generated
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E ﬂ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INFRASTRUCTURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

4. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS — INVESTMENTS
(Long=term, Trade)

% in Lakhs
Number Face Value As at As at
. As at As at ®) March 31, March 31,
pataaes March 31, March 31, 2024 2023
2024 2023
Carried at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
Unquoted, Fully Paid—up
Others
()  0.01% Non—Participating Optionally 650,000,000 650,000,000 10.00 - -
Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares
(OCPS) in GTL Limited.
TOTAL - —
4.1 Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments - -
4.2 Total Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss - -
4.3 Refer Note No. 2.7 for basis of valuation
5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
< in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Security Deposit —
Others
— Considered good 6,657 6,317
— Which have significant increase in credit risk 74 104
— Credit impaired - -
6,731 6,421
Less : Provision for expected credit loss 74 104
6,657 6,317
Fixed Deposits with Banks held as Security 112 108
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 5 1
Total 6.774 6,426
6. OTHER NON-CURRENT TAXES
< in Lakhs
: As at As at
FEGUETE S March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Advance income—tax 13,374 10,168
Total 13,374 10,168
7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated)
< in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Capital advances —
Others
— Considered good 5 112
— Considered Doubtful 97 97
102 209
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 97 97
5 112
Prepaid Expenses 6 300
Other Deposits 1,144 1,199
Other Advance* 2,170 1,606
Total 3,325 3,217

* Mainly includes amount paid under protest to Indirect Tax Authorities.
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8. INVENTORIES

% in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Stores, Spares and Consumables 402 447
Total 402 447
Refer Note No. 2.5 for basis of valuation
9. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS — INVESTMENTS
(Other than Trade)
% in Lakhs
Number Face Value
Particulars As at As at ®) As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,  March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Investment
(Carried at Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
Unquoted
In Unit of Mutual Funds
HDFC ULTRA SHORT TERM FUND — REGULAR GROWTH 35,392,030 35,392,030 10 4,901 4,573
ICICI PRUDENTIAL LIQUID FUND — GROWTH 527,066 527,066 100 1,868 1,743
ICICI PRUDENTIAL OVERNIGHT FUND GROWTH 466,442 466,442 1,000 599 561
TOTAL 7,368 6,877
Note:
9.1 Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments 7,368 6,877
9.2 Total Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss 7,368 6,877
9.3 Refer Note No. 2.7 for basis of valuation
10. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured and subject to confirmation)
T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Receivables
— Considered good (Secured) - -
— Considered good (Unsecured) 31,642 13,074
— Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
— Credit impaired 36,627 42,290
68,269 55,364
Less : Provision for expected credit loss — Credit impaired 36,627 42,290
31,642 13,074
Total 31,642 13,074
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10.1(a) Trade Receivables aging schedule as on March 31, 2024 T in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/date of transaction
Particulars NotDue LessThan 6months 1-2 2-3 Morethan  Total
6 months -1 year years years 3 years
()  Undisputed Trade receivables — Considered good 1,004 26,337 3,963 134 81 124 31,642

(Unsecured)

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables — Which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables — Credit impaired - 444 90 443 167 108 1,252
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables — Considered good - - - - - - -
(Unsecured)

(v)  Disputed Trade receivables — Which have significant - - - — - — _
increase in credit risk

(vi)  Disputed Trade receivables — Credit impaired — 114 1,267 1,273 813 31,909 35,375
1,004 26,895 5,319 1,850 1,061 32,141 68,269
Less: Provision for expected credit loss — Credit impaired - (558) (1,357)  (1,716) (980) (32,016) (36,627)
Total 1,004 26,337 3,963 134 81 124 31,642
10.1(b) Trade Receivables aging schedule as on March 31, 2023 < in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/date of transaction
Particulars NotDue LessThan 6months 1-2 2-3  Morethan  Total
6 months -1 year years years 3years
() Undisputed Trade receivables — Considered good 571 12,425 66 12 - - 13,074

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables — Which have - - - - — — _
significant increase in credit risk

(i)  Undisputed Trade receivables — Credit impaired - 1,425 916 166 125 2,632
(iv)  Disputed Trade receivables — Considered good - - - - - - —

(v)  Disputed Trade receivables — Which have significant - - - - - - —
increase in credit risk

(viy  Disputed Trade receivables — Credit impaired — 2,667 3,388 1,459 2,841 29,303 39,658

571 15,092 4,880 2,387 3,007 29,428 55,364
Less: Provision for expected credit loss — Credit impaired - (2,667) (4,813)  (2,375)  (3,007) (29,428) (42,290)
Total 571 12,425 66 12 - - 13,074

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

< in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with Banks:
— in current accounts* 41,167 49,636
Cash on hand - 0
(0 value stands for X 13,564 in previous year)

41,167 49,636
Total 41,167 49,636

* The above balance includes X 13,277 Lakhs (Previous year ¥ 13,591 Lakhs) which are earmarked towards expenditures & Capex as per TRA
mechanism (Refer Note No. 36)

11.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per Cash Flow Statement) 41,167 49,636
12. OTHER BANK BALANCES
Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Margin Money 123 119
123 119
Total 123 119
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13. OTHERS CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

Security Deposits

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

— Considered good 3,582 3,503
— Which have significant increase in credit risk 737 637
— Credit impaired - -
4,319 4,140
Less : Provision for expected credit loss 737 637
3,582 3,503
Unbilled Income 5,476 5,947
Other Receivables (Unsecured, Considered good
unless otherwise stated )
— Considered good - -
— Considered Doubtful 2,458 2,458
2,458 2,458
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 2,458 2,458
Interest Receivable 94 206
Total 9,152 9,656
14. CURRENT TAX ASSETS
T in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Advance income—tax
Total

15. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated)

% in Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Balance with Government Authorities/Entities 1,681 889
Prepaid expenses 716 905
Other Advances*
— Considered good 4,161 3,656
— Considered Doubtful 103 100
4,264 3,756
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 103 100
4161 __ 365
Total 6,558 5,450
* Mainly relating to advances to suppliers, employees, etc.
16. EQUITY SHARE CGAPITAL
X in Lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised

16,000,000,000; (16,000,000,000); Equity Shares of X 10 each
200,000,000; (200,000,000); Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

12,807,020,947; (12,671,102,746); Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid—up

Total

1,600,000 1,600,000

200,000 200,000
1,800,000 1,800,000
1,280,702 1,267,110
1,280,702 1,267,110
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16.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Number T in Lakhs Number T in Lakhs
Equity Shares at the beginning of the Year 12,671,102,746 1,267,110 12,623,326,856 1,262,333
Issued during the Year
— 0On conversion of Foreign Currency Convertible 135,918,201 13,592 47,775,890 4,778
Bonds (Refer Note — 22.1)
Equity Shares at the end of the Year 12,807,020,947 1,280,702 12,671,102,746 1,267,110

16.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

16.3 Shares reserved for issue under options :

The Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) holders have the option to convert FCCB into 492,907,042 Equity Shares
(Previous year 628,825,245). (Refer Note No. 22.1)

16.4 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Gompany

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of share holders Number of % holding in Number of % holding in
Shares held  Share Capital Shares held  Share Capital
Union Bank of India 1,546,271,529 12.07%  1,546,271,529 12.20%
Central Bank of India 942,154,365 7.36% 942,154,365 7.44%
Bank of Baroda 727,974,981 5.68% 727,974,981 5.75%
Indian Overseas Bank 670,032,490 5.23% 670,032,490 5.29%

16.5 Shareholding of Promoters as on March 31, 2024

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year ~ As on March 31,2024 As on March 31,2023 % change

Sr. Promoter Name No. of % of total No. of % of total dun:grthe
No. Shares Shares Shares Shares y

1 GTL Limited (Promoter)** - - - _

2 Global Holding Corporation Private Limited 420,144,016 3.28% 420,144,016 3.32% No*
(Promoter Group)

* Change due increase in equity share capital pursuant to allotment of shares upon conversion of FCCBs

** During the year ended March 31, 2019, entire shareholding held by GTL Ltd., which was pledged in favour of CDR lenders of GTL Ltd., through
security trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd (ITSL) were invoked and transferred to account of ITSL under Securitisation and Reconstruction of
Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities interest Act 2002.

16.6 Out of total paid up capital, 94,062,121 equity shares allotted pursuant to compulsory conversion of Series A Bonds on
maturity are not yet listed, since information regarding the Series A Bondholders are not available with the Company. In
the absence of requisite information, the Company has allotted the said equity shares to a Trust, created for the benefit
of Series A Bondholders.
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17. OTHER EQUITY
< in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Equity Component of Compound Financial
Instruments

Opening Balance 24,790 29,416

Add: Series B1 & Series B3 Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds - —

24,790 29,416

Less: Transferred to Share Capital on conversion
of FCCB into Equity Shares - 4,626

24,790 24,790
Reconstruction Reserve 1,993 1,993
Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Capital Reserve 1,846 1,846
Balance as per last Balance Sheet

Equity Contribution due to pledged Shares 3,401 3,401
invoked by Lenders

[Refer Note No. 18.1 (d)]

Securities premium 60,667 60,667
Balance as per last Balance Sheet

Retained Earnings in the Statement of Profit

& Loss
Opening Balance (1,813,674) (1,631,983)
Add: Loss for the Year (68,136) (181,691)

(1,881,810) (1,813,674)
Other Comprehensive Income in the Statement
of Profit & Loss
Opening Balance (207) (216)
Add: Loss for the Year (38) 9

(245) (207)

Total (1,789,358) (1,721,184)

Nature and purpose of Reserves
17.1 Equity Component of Compound Financial Instruments
Equity Component represents FCCB Series B1 & B3 Bonds compulsorily convertible into equity shares. (Refer Note No. 22.1)

17.2 Reconstruction Reserve
Created pursuant to scheme of arrangement approved by Hon’ble High Court in earlier years. It shall be utilised as per
provisions of Companies Act 2013.

17.3 Capital Reserve
Created On Forfeiture of Preferential Convertible Warrants. It shall be utilised as per provisions of Companies Act 2013,

17.4 Securities premium

Created on conversion of Employee Stock Options Scheme , Preferential Warrants and Foreign currency convertible
Bonds. It shall be utilised as per provisions of Companies Act 2013.
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18. BORROWINGS

% in Lakhs

Particulars As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023

Secured Loans
Rupee Term Loans from

— Banks

12,882 22,645

— Financial Institution 4,160 7,345
— Asset Reconstruction Trust 73,670 121,093

90,712 151,083

Less: Transferred to Current Borrowings
(Reclassified pursuant to IND (AS) —1)
(Refer Note No. 18.1 & 22) (90,712) (151,083)

Total

18.1 (a)

(b)

(©

(@

(€

V)

18.2 (a)

In 2018, post the unprecedented shutdown and exits of major customers like Aircel, RCom, Tata Tele etc., the

Company suffered a significant fall in revenue and EBITDA and there was an urgent need to right size the debt

levels. At that time, the lenders of the Company chose to assign their respective debts in favour of Edelweiss Asset

Reconstruction Company Limited (“EARC”). As of March 31, 2024, 79.34% of Indian Rupee Debt of ¥ 322,625 Lakhs

have been assigned in favour of EARC acting in its capacity as Trustee of EARC Trust—SC 338 vide assignment

agreement executed in favour of EARC. The Company believed that once the assignment was completed, the debt
would be restructured to sustainable levels in a timely manner and accordingly, the Company presented multiple

Resolution Plans starting from April 2018 for consideration of lenders’ consortium updating such plans from time to

time after taking into account various developments in telecom sector, Howevet, for reasons best known to them,

the said Resolution Plans submitted by the Company were never considered by the lenders and also few lenders
elected not to assign their respective debts to EARC.

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”) vide its order dated November 18, 2022

(which was uploaded on its website on November 23, 2022) has dismissed petition filed by Canara Bank for

initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Section 7 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code,

2016 (“IBC"). The Hon’ble Tribunal held that the business of the Company is sustainable, it is a viable going concern

under its current management and the overall financial health of the Company is not bad enough to be admitted

under CIRP. Thus, in view of aforementioned, the petition is dismissed, against which Canara Bank has filed an
appeal before National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, at Delhi (“NCLAT”). EARC who is the lead lender has also
filed its intervention application in the said appeal, before NCLAT.

IDBI Trusteeship Company Limited (ITSL) at the behest of lenders has, without the consent of and information to the

Company, debited a total amount of ¥ 35,600 Lakhs, X 28,000 Lakhs, ¥ 33,500 Lakhs and ¥ 14,000 Lakhs from

the TRA account during financial year 2020-21, 2021-22, 2022—23 and 2023—24 respectively aggregating to

111,100 Lakhs as on March 31, 2024, In the absence of consent of and information to the Company about such

debits, the Company has provided the interest on borrowings after adjusting this amount in principal.

Additionally, ITSL, on the instruction of lenders of the Company, has realised X 3,401 Lakhs by way of sale of pledged

equity shares. The said amount is reduced from the Lenders’ outstanding amount and considered as other equity

towards contribution of promoter group Company considering invocation of their pledged shares by the lenders.

The Company received notices of recall of loans from EARC and IDBI Bank claiming alleged default of ¥ 382,261

Lakhs and ¥ 20,102 Lakhs respectively in terms of Master Restructuring Agreement dated December 31, 2011

during financial year 2020-21. The Company has strongly refuted the claims and responded to said notices

appropriately. Thus, in absence of directions from lenders as stated above, the Company continues to mention
terms of repayment (Refer note No 18.3) and amount of Overdue (Refer note no. 18.4) as on March 31, 2024 in
terms of and in accordance with the payment schedule, terms and conditions of Strategic Debt Restructuring

Scheme as approved by then lenders.

As per the arrangements with the Lenders, the Company is required to comply with certain covenants and non—

compliance with these covenants may give rights to the lenders to demand Repayment of the loans. Considering

alleged claims of lenders and to comply with the requirement of Ind AS —1 “Presentation of Financial Statement”,
the Company has classified Non—Current borrowings as Current Financial liability as an abundant precaution,

which was classified for the first time in the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2019 .

(i)  Specific Charge — Banks, Financial Institutions and Asset Reconstruction Trust of the erstwhile standalone
Company and erstwhile CNIL continue to have specific charge on the assets or properties of respective
companies as existed on the effective date of merger i.e December 22, 2017.

(i)  Personal guarantee of Mr. Manoj Tirodkar and sponsor support from Global Holding Corporation Private
Limited (GHC) to Banks and Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).
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(b) Foreign Currency Term Loan from Financial Institutions is secured as follows:

Specific Charge — Secured Foreign Currency Lender of erstwhile standalone Company will continue to have specific
charge on the assets or properties of erstwhile standalone Company as existed on the effective date of merger i.e
December 22, 2017.

(c) Al Secured Lenders have parri passu charge on all the present and future current assets including Cash flow and
assets or properties acquired and erected after the effective date of merger i.e December 22, 2017

18.3 Terms of Repayment

()  RupeeTerm Loans from Banks, Financial Institutions and Asset Reconstruction Trust (including Current Maturities of
Long—term borrowings) having an effective yield of 10.75% over the tenure of the facility amounting to ¥ 365,522
Lakhs are repayable in 33 structured quarterly instalments ending on June 30, 2026 as per the SDR termsheet.
The Maturity Profile of these loans is as set below:

2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
T 294,887 Lakhs T 54,431 Lakhs % 16,204 Lakhs
(i) Part of Rupee Term Loan from Asset Reconstruction Trust (assigned by ICICI Bank Limited) (including current
maturities of Long—term borrowings) having an effective yield of 8 % over the tenure of the facility amounting to
330,605 Lakhs is repayable in 33 structured quarterly instalments ending on June 30, 2026 as per the SDR terms.
The Maturity Profile of these loans is as set below:

2024-25 2025-26 2026-27
T 24,728 Lakhs T 4,366 Lakhs % 1,511 Lakhs
(i) Rupee Term Loan from Asset Reconstruction Trust having an Interest rate of 8% p.a aggregating to ¥ 10,493 Lakhs are
repayable only after the Final Settlement date of all the other restructured Loans i.e., June 30, 2026 as per SDR terms,.
(iv) The Foreign Currency Term Loan (included Current Maturities of Long term borrowings) is repayable in 24 equated
quarterly instalments of Euro 4 Lakhs starting from June 15,2013 and ending on March 15,2021, The loan carries
Interest rate of 3 months Euribor+200 bps.

18.4 The details of overdue Principal and interest payable as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Zin Lakhs
Ageing More
Particulars OVT::;LB 0-90 91-365  366- tha,)“a;g%
Days Days 1095 Days
Principal Payable on Rupee Term Loan from Banks & Financial Institution* 27,046 3,106 9,317 14,623 -
Principal Payable on Rupee Term Loan from Asset Reconstruction Trust* 120,194 11,321 33,963 74,910 -
Principal Payable on Foreign Currency Term Loan from Financial Institution* 6,766 - - - 6,766

Principal Payable on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 31,359 - - 31,359 -
Interest Payable on Rupee Term Loan from Banks & Financial Institution** 73,182 5,051 14,345 32,037 21,749
Interest Payable on Rupee Term Loan from Asset Reconstruction Trust** 272,101 18,539 52,720 117,534 83,309

Interest Payable on Foreign Currency Term Loan from Financial Institution** 2,082 145 419 567 951
Interest Payable on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds** 25,814 238 1,852 9,754 13,969
TOTAL 558,544 38,400 112,616 280,784 126,744

*Included in Current Maturities of Long—Term Borrowings (Refer Note — 22)

** Shown as Interest accrued and due on Borrowings (Refer Note — 24)
During the financial year 2020—21, the Company has received notices of recall of loans from Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (“EARC”) and IDBI Bank claiming alleged default of X 382,261 Lakhs and X 20,102 Lakhs respectively. However,
in absence of directions from lenders as stated in Note No. 18.1, the Company continues to mention terms of repayment (Refer
note No 18.3) and amount of Overdue (Refer note no. 18.4) as on March 31, 2024 in terms of and in accordance with the payment
schedule, terms and conditions of Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme as approved by then lenders.

19. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2 in Lakhs
. As at As at
el March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Deposits from customers 1,800 2,023
Total 1,800 2,023
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20,

21.

22,

PROVISIONS

% in Lakhs

; As at As at
FEGUETES March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Provision for compensated absences 108 98
Asset Retirement Obligation 5,789 5,286
Total 5,897 5,384
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

T in Lakhs

; As at As at
T March 31,2024 _March 31, 2023

Advance Revenue 864 1,144
Total 864 1,144
BORROWINGS

T in Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings Reclassified from Non—current Borrowings
pursuant to IND (AS) —1 (Refer Note No. 18 & 18.1)
Secured Loans
Rupee Term Loans from
— Banks 12,882 22,645
— Financial Institution 4,160 7,345
— Asset Reconstruction Trust 73,670 121,093
90,712 151,083

Unsecured Loans

— Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 31,359 48,046
(Refer Note — 22.1)

Current maturities of long—term borrowings

(Refer Note — 18.1 & 18.4)

— Rupee Term Loans from Banks and Financial 67,747 55,325
Institutions
— Foreign Currency Term Loans from Financial 6,766 6,704
Institutions & Others
— Rupee Term Loans from Asset Reconstruction Trust 251,868 206,416
326,381 268,445
Less: Amount debited by IDBI Trusteeship 111,100 97,100

(Adjustment in Principal Repayment)

[Refer Note — 18.1 (c)]

Less: Amount realised by Lenders by invoking
Pledge (Adjustment in Principal Repayment)

[Refer Note — 18.1 (d)] 3,401 3,401
211,880 167,944
Total 333,951 367,073

22.1 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs):

()  During the financial year 201718, the Company had issued 80,745 Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Compulsorily Convertible
Bonds due on 2022 of US$ 1000 each (“Series B1 Bonds), 86,417 Interest Bearing Convertible Bonds due on 2022 of US$
1000 each (“Series B2 Bonds”) and 30,078 Zero Coupon Compulsorily Convertible due 2022 of US$ 1000 each (“Series
B3 Bonds”) in exchange of the then Existing outstanding Interest Bearing Convertible Bonds due 2017 (“Series B Bonds”)
of US$ 167,193,000 along with redemption premium and outstanding interest on Series B Bonds, pursuant to Offering
Memorandum dated October 26, 2017. Since these bonds were issued against the cashless exchange offer, the Company
did not receive any proceeds from the offering of the Series B1 Bonds, Series B2 Bonds and Series B3 Bonds.

(ii) Terms and Conditions of the Series B1 Bonds:

a. The Series B1 Bonds are compulsorily convertible into fully paid equity shares of X 10 each on October 27,
2022 at a fixed rate of exchange of ¥ 65,1386 to US$.1.00 subject to certain adjustments as described in
Terms and Conditions of Series B1 Bonds;
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Floor Price in each case at a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of T 65,1386 to US$ 1.00 subject to certain
adjustments as described in Terms and Conditions of Series B1 Bonds.

b.  The Series B1 Bonds do not bear any interest.

(iii) Terms and Conditions of the Series B2 Bonds:

a. The Series B2 Bonds bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.7310% p.a. payable semi—annually in arrears on
26 April and 26 October, beginning on the 12 months anniversary of the issuance of the Series B2 Bonds i.e.
on October 26, 2018.

b.  The Series B2 Bonds are redeemable at 100% of its principal amount on October 27, 2022 unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled.

c. The Series B2 Bonds are convertible at the option of the holders of the Series B2 Bonds at any time from the
date of the issue of the Series B2 Bonds up to the close of business on October 27, 2022 into Equity Shares
at a conversion price equal to ¥ 10 per Share with a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of ¥ 65.1386 to
US$ 1.00 subject to certain adjustments as described in Terms and Conditions of Series B2 Bonds.

d.  Following the occurrence of a Change of Control, the holder of each Series B2 Bond will have the right at such
holders option to require the Company to redeem in whole but not in part such holders Series B2 Bonds at
100% of their principal amount (Change of Control Put Price), together with accrued and unpaid interest and
default interest (if any) up to and including the date of payment of the Change of Control Put Price.

(iv) Terms and Conditions of the Series B3 Bonds:

a. The Series B3 Bonds are compulsorily convertible into fully paid equity shares of T 10 each on October 27,
2022 at a fixed rate of exchange of ¥ 65.1386 to US$ 1.00 subject to certain adjustments as described in
Terms and Conditions of Series B3 Bonds;

b.  The Series B3 Bonds do not bear any interest.

(v) Series B1 & Series B3 bonds have become compulsorily convertible upon maturity date i.e. October 27, 2022. The
Company has requested bondholders to share their respective details for converting bonds and crediting equity
shares to their respective account. However, the Company is awaiting the relevant details from the respective
bondholders. Series B2 Bonds are redeemable and have matured on October 27, 2022. The lead secured lender
has, however, informed the Company that till the entire outstanding Secured debt of the Secured lenders is fully
paid off, no other creditor including Series B2 Bondholders, which rank sub—ordinate to the secured creditors,
can be paid in priority. Hence, the Company could not redeem Series B2 Bonds on its maturity. Thus, as per the
Terms and Conditions of Series B2 Bonds, in case of default in redemption of Series B2 Bonds, conversion right of
bondholders will revive and /or will continue to be exercisable up to the date of receipt of redemption amount by
the Principal Agent / Trustee of the Series B2 Bonds.

(vi) As on March 31, 2024, 27,728.50 Series B1 Bonds, 37,612 Series B2 Bonds and 10,330 Series B3 Bonds were
outstanding.

23. TRADE PAYABLES

% in Lakhs
FelitELELD March, §1a,t2024 March o t 2023
Suppliers for goods and services
— Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 192 125
— Others 3,015 4,214
Total 3,207 4,339
23.1 (@) Trade Payables aging schedule as on March 31, 2024
< in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/date of transaction
Particulars NotDue LessThan 1-2 2-3 More than  Total
1 year years years 3 years
() MSME 187 5 1 0 - 192
(i)  Others 2,729 62 14 18 79 2,903
(i) Disputed dues— MSME - - 0 - - 0
(iv) Disputed dues— Others - - 3 4 106 112
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23.1 (b) Trade Payables aging schedule as on March 31, 2023

< in Lakhs
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/date of transaction
Particulars NotDue Less Than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years
() MSME 108 12 3 0 125
(i)  Others 3,704 195 45 123 4,115
(iii)  Disputed dues— MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues— Others - - 1 88 99
23.2 Details of dues to micro, small & medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act,2006
. As at As at
el RS March 31,2024 _March 31, 2023
(i)  The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accounting year:
(@) Principal amount Outstanding 192 125
(b) Interest thereon [0 Value Stands for ¥ 2,818 (Previous year X 18,704)] 0 0
(i)  The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting period:
(@) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 NIL NIL
(b) Delayed principal payments NIL NIL
(iii)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making NIL NIL
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 0 0
accounting year [0 Value Stands for ¥ 2,818 (Previous year X 18,704)]
(v)  the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding NIL NIL

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The Company has compiled this information based on intimations received from suppliers of their status as Micro or
Small enterprises and / or its registration with the appropriate authority under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006.
24. OTHER GURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2 in Lakhs

Particulars As At March 31, 2024 As At March 31, 2023

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 27 24
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (Refer 373,179 296,890
Note — 18.1 & 18.4)
Deposits from customers 9,602 9,423
Creditors for Capital goods (Refer Note No. 24.2)

— Micro,Small & Medium Enterprises 14 1

— Others 48 82

62 93

Other Payable* 129,527 120,539
Total 512,397 426,969

* Mainly includes Provision towards Rent, Electricity, Salary, Other expenses and GTL arbitration Claim payable.
24.1 (a) Creditors for Capital goods aging schedule as on March 31,2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/date of transaction

Particulars Not Due  Less Than 1=-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years
() MSME 11 3 - - - 14
(i) Others 35 4 1 1 8 48
(iii) Disputed dues— MSME - - - - - -
(iv) _Disputed dues— Others - - 0 - 0 0
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26.

27.

24.1 (b) Creditors for Capital goods aging schedule as on March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/date of transaction

Particulars Not Due Less Than 1-2 2-3 More than Total
1 year years years 3 years
() MSME 7 1 0 - 0 7
(i)  Others 13 16 1 - 2 32
(iii) Disputed dues— MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues— Others - - - 0 8 8
24.2 Details of dues to micro, small & medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act,2006
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accounting year:

(@) Principal amount Outstanding

(b) Interest thereon

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting period:

(@) Interest paid in terms of Section 16

(b) Delayed principal payments

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

14

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL

11

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL

The Company has compiled this information based on intimations received from suppliers of their status as Micro or Small enterprises
and/or its registration with the appropriate authority under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

25 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

2 in Lakhs
; As at As at
PGS March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Advance Revenue 179 214
Advance received from customer 22 21
Property Tax Payable 7,094 5,334
Statutory dues 2,649 2,753
Total 9,944 8,322
PROVISIONS
T in Lakhs
: As at As at
FEGUETES March 31,2024 _March 31, 2023
Provision for compensated absences 25 23
Asset Retirement Obligation 5,068 4,885
Total 5,093 4,908
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
T in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Revenue from Telecom/Network Infrastructure Facilities
Energy and Other Re—imbursements

Total

83,419 87,483
53,782 58,303
137,201 145,786
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28. OTHER INCOME

% in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Income 319 1,023
Difference on measurement of financial instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss 490 349
Extinguishment of Liabilities* 3,552 39
Miscellaneous Income 763 1,336
Total 5,124 2,747
* Extinguishment of Liabilities towards FCCB Conversion
29. INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATION & MAINTENANCE COST
2in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Short—term Lease — Site Rentals 7,723 9,677
Power, Fuel and Maintenance Charges 68,619 67,879
Repairs and Maintenance to Plant and Equipments 573 770
Stores & Spares consumption 15 43
Other Operating Expenditure 2,588 3,406
Total 79,518 81,775
30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
% in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Yearended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and Allowances 6,730 5,943
Contribution to Providend Fund, Gratuity fund and Other Funds 417 373
Employee Welfare and other amenities 30 24
Total 7,177 6,340

30.1 Employee Benefits:

As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefits” the disclosure of Employee Benefit, as defined in Accounting
Standard are given below:

Defined Gontribution Plan

< in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Employer’s Contribution to Provident fund 230 189
Employer’s Contribution to Pension fund 97 94
Total 327 283

Defined Benefit Plan

The employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by the Trust maintained with Life
Insurance Corporation of India [LIC]. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for compensated
absences is recognised in same manner as gratuity.
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a. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

< in Lakhs
Gratuity Funded
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the Year 668 593
Current Service Cost 74 70
Current Interest Cost 50 42
Past Service Cost - -
Liability Transfer In 10 6
Liability Transfer Out 2 2
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation — Due to change in Demographic - -
Assumptions*
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation — Due to change in Financial Assumptions 12 (12)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation — Due to Experience 26 4
Benefits paid (83) (33)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the Year 755 668
b. Reconciliation of opening & closing balances of fair value of plan assets
< in Lakhs
Gratuity Funded
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Fair Value of Plan Asset at beginning of the Year 778 663
Interest Income 58 48
Expected Return on Plan Assets ) 1
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) - -
Contributions 68 96
Fund Transfer In 10 6
Fund Transfer out ) 2)
Benefits paid (83) (33)
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the Year 830 778
¢. Reconciliation of present value of obligations & fair value of plan assets
< in Lakhs
Gratuity Funded
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the Year 830 778
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the Year 755 668
Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet (74) (110)
d. Expense Recognised During the year
< in Lakhs
Gratuity Funded
: For the For the
e year ended year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Current Service Cost 74 70
Net Interest Cost 8) (5)
Past Service Cost - —
Net Cost Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Account 65 65
In Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) - -
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 38 8)
Return on plan assets 1 1
Net (Income)/Expenses for the vear recognised in OCI 38 9
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e. Assumptions used to determine the defined benefit obligation

Gratuity Funded
Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Mortality Table Indian Assured  Indian Assured
Lives mortality  Lives mortality
(2006-08) (2006—08)
Ultimate Ultimate
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.19% 7.44%
Estimated rate of return on Plan Assets (p.a.) 7.19% 7.44%
Expected rate of increase in salary (p.a.) 5.00% 5.00%

The estimates of rate of increase in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information
is certified by the actuary.

The Expected Rate of Return of Plan Assets is determined considering several applicable factors. Mainly the composition of Plan
Assets held, assessed risks, historical results of return on Plan Assets and the Company’s policy for Plan Assets Management.
f.  The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:
Zin Lakhs
Gratuity Funded

For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

830 778

Particulars

Insurance Fund

g. Sensitivity Analysis
Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount trade,
expected salary increase and employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant. The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below:

Sensitivity Analysis
< in Lakhs
Gratuity Fund
f For the For the For the For the
el year ended year ended year ended year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Sensitivity level 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Assumptions
Impact of Rate of discounting (45) 50 (39) 44
Impact of Rate of salary increase 42 (38) 36 (34)
Impact of Rate of Employee Turnover 6 (7) 6 (7)
h. Expected Contribution towards defined benefit plan in future years
Maturity Analysis of Projected benefit Obligation :From the Fund
T in Lakhs
Gratuity Funded
; For the For the
FELEELEL year ended year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Within 1 year 61 64
1-2 year 43 54
2-3 year 78 41
3-4 year 80 69
4-5 year 99 69
5-10 years 420 395
11 years & above 512 474

Maturity Analysis of Projected Defined Benefit Obligation is done considering future salary, attrition & death in

respective year for members as mentioned above.
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31. FINANCE COSTS

< in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Interest 74,116 69,715
Finance Cost on Lease Liability 5,937 6,532
Exchange difference to the extent considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs 456 1,946
Total 80,509 78,193
32. BALANGES WRITTEN OFF (NET) AND PROVISION FOR TRADE RECEIVABLES AND ADVANCES
< in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Balances Written Off (Net) 9,944 1,320
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances Written Back (12,724) (3,725)
(2,780) -
Provision for Trade Receivables/Energy Recoverables & Deposits 6,829 11,954
Total 4,049 9,549
33. EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES (NET)
< in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Exchange differences (net) 436 3,955
Total 436 3,955
34. OTHER EXPENSES
< in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Short—term Lease 755 694
Property Tax Including Rates and Taxes — Others 2,428 1,615
Electricity 105 97
Repairs and Maintenance
— Office Equipments 37 41
Insurance Premium 1,380 1,421
Communication Cost 66 65
Travel and Conveyance 752 763
Legal and Professional Charges 1,921 1,658
Payment to Auditors 83 54
Office Expenses 380 387
Printing and Stationery 40 46
Directors’ Sitting Fees 132 106
Advertisement and Business Promotion 16 16
Loss on/due to Sale, theft of fixed assets by Landlords/Unknown miscreants (net) 52 33,358
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,283 1,080
Total 9,430 41,401
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.1 Auditor’s Remuneration includes

Zin Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Audit Fees 45 45
Tax Audit Fees 23 -
Certification Fees 15 9
Out of Pocket Expenses (X 23,304) 0 -
Total 83 54
35. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS:
T in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment Loss 1,543 58,654
Total 1,543 58,654

Considering the current situation of telecom scenario mentioned in note no. 57 and dismantling of sites as mentioned in
note no. 58, the Company carried out an impairment test of its property, plant and equipment in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 36 — ‘Impairment of Assets’ and found that the Carrying cost of these assets exceeds its value
in use; therefore, an impairment loss of X 1,543 Lakhs has been recognized for the year ended March 31,2024 (previous year
T 58,654 Lakhs) and the same has been disclosed as exceptional items.

36. ARBITRATION:

Pursuant to the Energy Management Agreement, Field Level Management Services Agreement and Suspension Agreement, GTL Limited
(“GTL") had invoked arbitration proceedings against the Company and claimed an amount of ¥ 69,000 Lakhs along with damages.
Three retired Supreme Court Judges were formed an Arbitral Tribunal and examined the underlying facts of the matter. The Hon'ble
Tribunal had passed an interim award dated December 17, 2019 directing the Company to pay an amount of ¥ 44,000 Lakhs to GTL.
The balance claim of ¥ 25,000 Lakhs is still under consideration by the Hon’ble Arbitral Tribunal and the matter is reserved for final order.
The Company preferred an appeal against the interim award before the Hon'ble Delhi High Court and the same had been
dismissed while confirming the interim award passed by the Hon’ble Arbitral Tribunal. In view of the Arbitration award and
dismissal of appeal by Hon’ble Delhi High Court, the Company had provided X 44,000 Lakhs as claims against arbitration and
disclosed the same as exceptional items in the financial statements in FY 2019-20.

During the month of June 2020, EARC filed an appeal before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court (“EARC Appeal”) challenging the
interim Award passed by the Hon’ble Arbitral Tribunal dated December 27, 2019. The EARC appeal was disposed off by the
Hon’ble Delhi High Court on November 18, 2020 and modified the Interim Award to the extent that all payments directed
thereunder, would be deposited, not with the Company or in an Escrow Account to be maintained by the Company, but in the
TRA, created and maintained in accordance with the TRA Agreement. The said payments are to be kept deposited in the TRA
Account subject to further orders to be passed by the Hon’ble Arbitral Tribunal.

Subsequent to the said Judgment and Order dated November 18, 2020, EARC filed a Clarification Application and Review
Petition with regards to the said Judgment and Order dated November 18, 2020 before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court which
were dismissed on February 3, 2021 and February 4, 2022 respectively.

EARC thereafter filed a Special Leave Petition (SLP) before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, against the Hon’ble Delhi High
Court orders dated November 18, 2020 and February 4, 2022. EARC through Impleadment application has requested to the
Hon’ble Supreme Court to implead the non—assigning lenders of the Company to the said SLP. Company has filed its reply.
After hearing all the parties, on May 13, 2024, Hon'ble Supreme Court disposed of the said SLP of Appeal modifying the
Hon’ble Delhi HC order dated November 18, 2020 as, “...we modify the said portion and direct that the amount shall be
subject to the orders in Commercial Suit No.87/2020 pending before the Bombay High Court”.

37. DISCLOSURE ON LEASES:

[A] Company as a lessor
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement with its customers for Infrastructure provisioning. The following
table sets out the Maturity analysis of lease receivable for the lock in period of the customers after the reporting date:
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Maturity Analysis of Lease Receivables on undiscounted basis:

< in Lakhs
Periods Marcﬁs3?:I2024 Marcrf\ 3? ,t2023
0-1 year 49,287 52,049
1-2 Year 45,331 49,918
2-3 Year 37,941 45,414
3—4 Year 17,848 37,573
4-5 Year 12,795 16,364
Above 5 Year 38,916 48,738
Total 2,02,118 2,50,056
[B] Company as a lessee
Disclosure as per Ind AS 116
< in Lakhs
itz A Marcl‘1\s3?:‘2024 T t 2023
Depreciation charge for right of use assets 11,156 11,843
Finance Cost on lease liability 5,937 6,532
Expense relating to short—term leases:
— Infrastructure Operation & maintenance cost 7,723 9,677
— Other Expenses 755 694
Total cash outflow for leases 12,651 11,783
Additions to right of use assets 6,972 6,618
Carrying amount of right of use assets 48,547 53,733
Carrying amount of lease liabilities 56,107 60,995

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement with its landlords for land & building occupancies for sites
& offices premises. The following table sets out the Maturity analysis of lease payables for the lock in period after the

reporting date:
Maturity analysis of lease Payables on undiscounted basis:
< in Lakhs
ALl Marcﬁs3?:I2024 G ,t2023
Within one year 14,890 38,606
After one year but not later than five years 44,521 46,746
Later than five years 16,074 20,837
Total 75,485 1,06,189
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS:
[A] Contingent Liabilities:
i.  Contingent Liabilities:
< in Lakhs
AT Marcﬁs3$:[2024 March ,t2023
Bank guarantees (Provided under contractual and legal obligations) 29 29
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts. 1,79,339 1,65,038
Amount deposited under protest ¥ 1,034 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 1,351 lakhs)
Disputed liability in respect of indirect tax matters under appeal. 35,114 65,505
Amount deposited under protest ¥ 1,984 lakhs (Previous year 3 1,450 lakhs)
Disputed liability in respect of direct tax matters under appeal 1,352 13,240
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ii.  Certain Legal issues are outstanding against the Company mainly in relation to the alleged non—compliance of
policies of municipal corporations, cases pending for permanent injunctions, objections by the local residents,
disputes with site owners, in respect of which the amounts cannot be quantified at this stage and therefore the
Contingent Liability in respect of this could not be determined.

The Company does not expect any material financial effect of the above matters under litigation.

[B] Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances):

% in Lakhs
q As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Capital Commitments 265 430

Cash outflow is expected on execution of such contracts on progressive basis.

39. CENVAT CREDIT:

During earlier years, as legally advised, the Company’s CENVAT credit aggregating to ¥ 7,993 Lakhs was utilized for discharging
service tax liability of Chennai Network Infrastructure Limited (CNIL), an erstwhile Associate, which subsequently got merged with the
Company. CNIL also paid the same amount to the Service Tax Authority under Voluntary Compliance Encouragement Scheme (VCES) in
November, 2013. Subsequently, the Company filed a writ petition in Hon’ble Bombay High Court for seeking restoration of this CENVAT
credit and based on the Hon’ble Bombay High Court direction, CESTAT passed the order in March 2015 for allowing the Company to
restore the said amount as CENVAT credit. The Service tax authorities have filed an appeal with the High court challenging the CESTAT
order passed in March 2015, The Company has been advised that there will not be any cash outflows in this regard.

40. PROPERTY TAX:

The Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its order dated December 16, 2016 upheld that “Mobile Telecommunication Tower” is exigible
to Property Tax and the State can levy property tax to Mobile Tower Companies. While deciding the Special Leave Petition (SLP)
for Mumbai region matters, the Hon’ble Supreme Court had given liberty to agitate the issue with regard to the retrospective
operation of assessment/demand of property tax and the quantum thereof before the appropriate forum. Subsequent to the
Judgment of Hon’ble Supreme Court in January 2017; the Company had filed an appeal before the Hon’ble Bombay High Court
challenging the quantum of property tax and other issues, which was dismissed by an Order dated April 18, 2017.

The Company preferred a Special Leave Petition (SLP) against the said Order with regards to the manner, quantum, component
of property tax and other issues. The same was heard on January 25, 2018 and the Hon’ble Supreme Court was pleased to
issue a notice to Municipal Corporation. Also, the Hon’ble Supreme Court has directed the Municipal Corporations to maintain
status quo. The said SLP was finally disposed off by an order dated January 02, 2019 and Hon'ble Supreme Court has set
aside the Bombay High Court order dated April 18, 2017 and has directed the Bombay High Court to decide the Writ Petition
on merits. The Company has filed an amendment application before the Hon’ble Bombay High Court in view of the Hon’ble
Supreme Court order and developments happened during the pendency of the SLP before Hon’ble Supreme Court.

Another IP Company namely ATC Telecom Private Limited (“ATC Company”) has preferred an appeal before Hon'ble Supreme
Court against the Order of the Hon’ble Gujarat High Court on the rates and taxes to be fixed for mobile towers in lieu of the
amendment made in the Gujarat Provincial Municipal Corporation Act, 1949 in the year 2011, The Hon’ble Supreme Court after
hearing the ATC Company in September, 2018 has granted leave and the matter is pending for final hearing. Further, The Company
has also filed a SLP on July 10th 2019, bearing SLP of 2019 before Hon’ble Supreme Court against Nagpur Municipal Corporation
challenging the calculation and quantum of the Property Tax. The Hon’ble Supreme Court has given a stay on the Hon'ble High
Court Order subject to payment of 50% of the demanded amount and tagged the said matter with SLP filled by ATC Company.

With respect to the few sites where demand notices for property tax have been received, the Company has contested the demands by
filing writ petitions in appropriate Courts for the assessment of property tax demand / retrospective levy of property tax, procedure and
quantum that have been demanded. Various High Courts have passed orders not to take any coercive action till the admission of matter.

As on March 31, 2024 the Company is having telecom sites spread across 25 circles in India. Out of which the levy of property
tax is not applicable in 12 Circles and the Company has also not received any demand notice for property tax from the local
authorities of such circles. Further, in the month of August, 2023 Department of Telecommunication (DOT) has passed an order
directing all authorities not to levy Property Tax to Infrastructure Providers in lieu of the West Bengal State Infrastructure Policy,
2023 which is applicable for Kolkata and West Bengal Circle.

For the remaining sites spread across 11 number of circles, the Company is currently involved in litigations at various forums,
and in case of some circles, the levy is being challenged by other Infrastructure Provider (IP) Company.
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The Company has paid Property Tax in accordance with specific High Court/Supreme Court Orders and in subsequent years also
paid the basic tax component as per demand note under protest in order to avoid site sealings by the authorities. These payments
were accounted for as expenses in the respective years of payment. In case where the Company has not contested/litigated the
property tax demands, the basic tax component of demand note has been duly paid and accounted in expenses in the respective
years. The balance amount of demand estimated based on the facts above have been reported under contingent liability.

The matter being still sub—judice with respect to the component of Property Tax, non—receipt of demand notices for majority
of the sites, the Company has reported the same in provisions or contingent liability depending on status of dispute.

Accordingly, the Company has reported estimated liability towards property taxes in its financial statements either as provision
or contingent liability
41. RELATED PARTY:
The disclosure of transactions with the related parties as per Ind AS 24 is provided below:
a) List of Related Parties & relationships with the Gompany:
Key Managerial Personnel:
e Mr.Vikas Arora, Whole—time Director (WTD)
e Mr. Bhupendra Kiny, Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
e Mr. Nitesh Mhatre, Company Secretary (CS)

b) Transactions during the year with related parties:

T in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

I KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
i) Vikas Arora— Whole Time Director#*

Salaries & Allowances 162 38

Post—Employment Benefits 5 2

Total 167 40
ii) Milind Naik— Whole Time Director#*

Salaries & Allowances - 57

Post—Employment Benefits - -

Total - 57
ili) Bhupendra Kiny, CFO*

Salaries & Allowances 172 124

Post—Employment Benefits 5 4

Total 177 128
iv) Nitesh Mhatre, Company Secretary*

Salaries & Allowances 134 Al

Post—Employment Benefits 4 3

Total 138 74

* Since the Liability for gratuity and leave encashment are provided based on the actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole, the
specific amount accrued pertaining to Key managerial personnel cannot be determined and hence it is not included above.

# Mr. Vikas Arora was appointed as Whole—time Director (WTD) w.e.f. November 10, 2022. Mr. Milind Naik (who resigned as WTD w.e.f.
September 22, 2022).
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42, EARNINGS PER SHARE

% in Lakhs
For the For the
Particulars Unit year ended year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Net Loss after tax attributable to T in Lakhs (68,136) (1,81,691)
Equity Shareholders for Basic/Diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares* Nos 13,02,21,80,157 12,91,78,91,485
outstanding for Basic/Diluted# EPS
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share X (0.52) (1.41)

*

Includes shares to be issued to the holders of Foreign Currency Compulsorily Convertible Bonds (FCCB Series—B1 & B3).

# The effect of Interest—Bearing Convertible Bonds (FCCB Series—B2) on the Earnings per Share is anti—dilutive and hence, the same is not
considered for the purpose of calculation of dilutive Earning per Share.

43. Details of loans given, investment made and guarantees given, covered U/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not given any Loan or Guarantee to any party for their borrowings during the FY 2023—24, The Company
has not made any investments during the FY 2023—24. Refer note no. 4 and 9 to the Financial Statements.

44. DEFERRED TAX:
a. Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate

During the Financial Year 2023—24, the Company has incurred losses and pursuant to the provisions of the Income Tax
Act,1961 no tax expenses has been recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Since the Company has opted for taxation under section 115BAA, the applicable tax rate for the financial year 2023—24
is 25.16 % (including Surcharge and Cess)

b. Deferred tax liabilities / (Assets) relates to the following:

T in Lakhs
L) March 51, 2024 March 3 3
Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property 9,432 5,721
Net Leases (1,890) (4,948)
Other Intangible Assets (419) (569)
Investments 102 73
Disallowance Under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (1,06,102) (89,064)
Provision for doubtful debts (9,157) (9,182)
Tax Losses:
Business Losses (7,684) (11,078)
Unabsorbed Depreciation (1,08,299) (1,16,162)
Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liability (2,24,017) (2,25,209)

Note: Figure in Bracket Indicates deferred Tax Assets

The Company has net Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) as at March 31, 2024 which is not recognized in the Financial Statements
in the absence of reasonable certainty of taxable profits in future against which the same can be utilized.

¢. Amount and expiry date of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognized:

2 in Lakhs
Unused Carried
Assessment Year (AY) Business Loss _Forward Till AY
2017-18 30,736 2025-26
Total 30,736

124 | GTL Infrastructure Limited



> CORPORATE OVERVIEW >) > STATUTORY REPORTS >) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ) )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

45, DISCLOSURE OF REVENUE RECOGNITION:
(a) Disaggregated Revenue information & Performance Obligation

The Company provides passive infrastructure on shared basis to telecom operators (Telcos) for hosting their active
network components. The business model of passive infrastructure sharing is based on building, owning, operating and
maintaining passive telecom infrastructure sites capable of hosting active network components of various technologies
of multiple Telcos. The Company operates solelywithin the geographic boundaries of India. The main source of revenue
includes Infrastructure Provisioning fee (IPF) and Reimbursements of Energy & Other Costs. It's an ongoing service
performance obligation based on long term contracts with the customers with pre—defined lock in periods. Contracts
are optimally designed based on fixed or actual contract basis matrix. Since the performance obligation is an ongoing
process, the same is billed on monthly basis/satisfaction of conditions in contract, which falls due for payments within
up to 30 days of billing or advance as per terms of contract. (Refer note no. 27 for Segregation of Revenue).

(b) Trade Receivable and contract balances

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and collections results in receivables, unbilled revenue and unearned revenue
on the Company’s Balance Sheet. Amounts are billed in accordance with agreed—upon contractual terms on monthly
basis. The Company’s receivables are rights to consideration that are unconditional. Unbilled revenues comprising
revenues in excess of billings from the contracts, which are classified as financial assets when the right to consideration
is unconditional and is due only within a month. Invoicing to the customers is based on the contracts and therefore, the
timing of revenue recognition is different from the timing of invoicing to the customers. Invoicing in excess of earnings
is classified as unearned revenue. Trade receivables are presented net of provision in the Balance Sheet.

The following table discloses the movement in unbilled energy & other reimbursement revenue on Customer contracts
during the Year ended March 31, 2024

Zin Lakhs
e Marcfl\s3$,t2024 o t 2023
Balance at the beginning 5,092 5,280
Add: Revenue recognized during the year end 4,789 5,092
Less: Invoiced during the year end 5,092 5,280
Balance at the end 4,789 5,092
46. MOVEMENT IN PROVISIONS:
Disclosure as required by Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Zin Lakhs
Provision for Asset
Nature of provision Compensated Retirement Total
Absences Obligation
As at April 1,2022 106 11,633 11,739
Unwinding of finance cost - 355 355
Addition 55 - 55
Payment 4) - 4)
Reversal / Re—measurement of liability (36) (1,820) (1,856)
As at March 31, 2023 121 10,169 10,289
As at April 1,2023 121 10,169 10,289
Unwinding of finance cost - 407 407
Addition 48 854 902
Payment )] - )]
Reversal / Re—measurement of liability (28) (574) (602)
As at March 31, 2024 134 10,856 10,989

47. In the opinion of the Management, Non—Current/Current Assets, Loans and Advances are approximately of the value stated if
realized in the ordinary course of the business.
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48. SEGMENT REPORTING:

The Company is predominantly in the business of providing “Telecom Towers” on shared basis and as such there are no
separate reportable segments. The Company’s operations are only in India.

Revenue from Operations includes ¥ 137,201 Lakhs (previous year X 135,310 Lakhs) towards aggregate amount of revenue
from three customers (previous year three customers), who individually contributes more than 10% of total revenue of the
Company.

These revenues are attributed to the Revenue from Telecom / Network Infrastructure Facilities, Energy and Other reimbursements.

49. FAIR VALUE:

Set out below, are the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are recognized in
the Financial Statements.

a) Financial Assets measured at fair Value through profit or Loss

< in Lakhs
L L March §1a,t2024 March §1a,t2023
Financial Assets:
— Investment in Preference Shares - -
— Investment in units of Mutual Funds 7,368 6,877
Total 7,368 6,877

b) The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are recorded at transaction cost
which is a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
Accordingly, the fair values of such financial assets and financial liabilities have not been disclosed separately in case of
the following:
i) Financial Assets:
—  Cash and Cash equivalents
—  Bank balances Including Deposits other than cash and cash equivalents
—  Loans &Advances
—  Security Deposits
— Interest Receivable
—  Trade Receivables and Unbilled Income
i)  Financial Liabilities:;
—  Lease Liabilities
—  Trade Payables and Creditors for Capital Goods
—  Other Financial Current Liabilities
—  Borrowings Including Interest
—  Deposits from Customer

Fair Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The Company maintains procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data
available. The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
i.  Fair Value of mutual fund are reported as per Net Asset Value.

ii. ~ The fair values of non—current loans/Borrowings and security deposits for leases are calculated based on Discounted
Cash Flows technique (DCF) using a current lending rate relevant to the instrument

ii. ~ Fair value of trade receivable, cash & cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables, loans and other financial
assets and liabilities are approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short—term maturities of these
instruments.

iv.  Fair Value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost such as Deposits, Borrowings, Lease Liabilities etc. are
approximate to their Carrying values.

v.  The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

126 | GTL Infrastructure Limited



> CORPORATE OVERVIEW >) > STATUTORY REPORTS >) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ) )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY:
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at year end is as follows:

Zin Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
: Fair Value Amortised Fair Value Amortised
el Through Cost Through Cost
Profit/Loss Profit/ Loss
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents - 41,167 - 49,636
Deposits with Banks - 123 - 119
Investments 7,368 - 6,877 -
Other Financial assets - 15,926 - 16,081
Trade Receivables - 31,642 — 13,074
Total 7,368 88,858 6,877 78,910
Financial Liabilities
Lease Liabilities - 56,107 - 60,995
Trade payables - 3,207 - 4,339
Borrowings and Interest - 7,07,157 - 6,63,987
Other Financial Liabilities - 1,40,991 - 1,32,079
Total - 9,07,462 - 8,61,400

51. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY:

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
techniques: —

Level 1: = Quoted prices / published NAV (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, it includes fair value of
financial instruments traded in active markets and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date and financial
instruments like mutual funds for which net assets value (NAV) is published by mutual fund operators as at the balance sheet date.

Level 2: = Inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). It includes fair value of the financial instruments, that are not
traded in an active market, which is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on the Group specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable then instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: = Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs), if one or
more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s Assets and Liabilities:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
level1 Llevel2 Level3 Level1 level2 Level3

Particulars

Financial Assets measured at fair value through Profit or
loss (Investments) :

— Investment in Preference shares - - - - - _
— Investment in Mutual Funds 7,368 - - 6,877 - -
Total 7,368 - - 6,877 - -

52. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES:

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings including Interest thereon, Lease Liabilities, Trade
payables, Capex Creditors, deposits from Customers and others Financial Liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations, including Tower/Network upgradation projects under implementation. The
Company’s principal financial assets include Investments, Deposits, loans and advances, receivables and cash and bank
balances that are derived directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Risk Management Committee in consultation
with Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company oversees the management of these risks. The focus of Risk
Management is to assess risks, monitor, evaluate and deploy mitigation measures to manage these risks within risk appetite.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below:
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1) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such
as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial Instrument affected by market risk includes loans and borrowings,
deposits and mutual funds.

As the revenues from Company’s tower business are dependent on the sustainability of Telecom sector, Company believes
that macro—economic factors, including the growth of Indian economy, interest rates as well as political & economic
environment, technological Obsolesce, Operators going out of the business have a significant direct impact on Company’s
business, results of operations & financial positions. There are following positive developments in telecom sector:

1. Government of India has introduced new telecom policy that to reform and simplify the regulatory and licensing
regime for telecommunications. The policy is expected to remove bottlenecks in creating telecom infrastructure,
protects users and provides a four—tiered structure for dispute resolution.

2. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited is in process to launch 4G and 5G services in 2024, as part of the revival package
which was approved by the Government of India.

3. InMarch 2024, Vodafone Idea Limited’s shareholders approved a plan to raise X 45,00,000 Lakhs for growth capex,
of which ¥ 18,00, 000 Lakhs has been raised through successful FPO in April 2024. VIL is expected to roll out 4G
and 5G sites.

4,  Bharti Airtel Limited and Reliance Jio Infocomm Limited continue to roll out new sites to penetrate their 5G network.
5. Hike in mobile call and data tariffs by telecom operators thereby increase in Average Revenue Per User (ARPU).

The above are clear indicators of a huge opportunity for Tower Companies in India, as many new locations will be required
for capacity expansion and greenfield coverage across India. In light of the same, the management of the Company
believes that the aforementioned events in telecom sector are positive developments which will lead to increase in
demand for its towers and thereby increase in the revenue and EBITDA levels. The Company has already mapped sites
for proposed 4G/5G rollout by its customers and negotiations are on to onboard the customers on unused sites.

a) Interest Rate Exposure profile appended in the table below:

Zin Lakhs

Borrowings s A9
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Floating Rate Loans with interest thereon 8,876 8,206
Fixed rate Loans with interest thereon 6,94,575 6,49,547
Total 7,03,451 6,57,753
b) Foreign Currency Exposure that are not hedged by derivative instruments is as follows:

Unhedged Foreign currency exposure Gurrency Amount in Foreign < in Lakhs
as at March 31, 2024 Currency
Borrowings and interest thereon usD ($) 6,85,73,118 57,112
Borrowings and interest thereon Euro (€) 98,38,339 8,876
Total 66,048
Unhedged Foreign currency exposure Currency Amount in Foreign < in Lakhs
as at March 31, 2023 Currency
Borrowings and interest thereon usD (%) 8,65,72,702 71,122
Borrowings and interest thereon Euro (€) 91,83,101 8,206
Trade Payable usD ($) 38,233 31
Total 79,360
Notes:

(i)  Above exposure does not include exposure towards Foreign Currency Compulsory Convertible Bonds (FCCB)
B1 & B3. Dispute related to FCCB B1 Series is disclosed under Contingent Liabilities in note no. 38.
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(i) Amounts in INR are recorded at the closing exchange rates applicable at the respective year end as stated on
the Reserve Bank of India website.

(i)  Amounts reported above are at actuals while same are measured at amortized cost in the Financial Statements
as per the requirement of Ind AS 109.

c) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Company’s fixed rate long term borrowings, which constitute more than 95%
of the total borrowings, carry step up interest rate with a predetermined yield rate which is fixed throughout the
tenor of the borrowings, whereas floating rate long Term Borrowing is exposed to market rate fluctuations. As such,
considering the ratio of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings, risk exposure is at minimum level.

Interest rate sensitivity:
With all other variable held constant the following table reflects the impact of borrowing cost on floating rate portion
of total Debt;

T in Lakhs
Financial Year ended Floating Rate Borrowings Risk Exposure on  Consequent effect on
particular Interest Rate profit/ loss before tax
(basis points)
March 31, 2024 Foreign Currency Term Loan +/-100 +/- 75
March 31, 2023 Foreign Currency Term Loan +/— 100 +/— 82

d) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company'’s borrowings related to its foreign currency convertible bonds & foreign currency loan.

Foreign currency risk is managed by effective foreign risk management framework based on risk perception of the
management

Foreign Risk sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USD & Euro to Indian Rupees with all other Variable held
constant. The effect on loss before tax due to foreign exchange rate fluctuation:

< in Lakhs

cForeign Risll(: Expo;ure COI;st(/atfuentb eff'fect on

. urrency on Forex Rate profit/ loss before tax
Particulars (Increase/ Decrease yjarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023

in basis points)

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds usD ($) 100 572 71
Foreign Currency Term Loan Euro (€) 100 89 82
Trade Payable usD (%) 100 - -
Total 660 794

e) Commodity Price Risk
The Company invests on upgradation of its tower assets which includes purchases of A class items like Battery
banks, Diesel Generators, SMPS and other electrical items. The prices of these items fluctuate based on the prices
of its raw material.

In case of battery bank the Lead price is based on LME rate (London Metal Exchange), with any variation in the LME
rates, the manufacturing price of battery also gets impacted.

Further, Company consumes Diesel and Electricity for running its tower sites. These rates for Diesel and Electricity
fluctuate based on central & state policies and geo political situations. Company has entered into contracts with
the Customers for recovery of Diesel and Electricity Expenses. These contracts are linked with actual Diesel and
Electricity Rates thus resulting in natural hedging.

Commodity price risk is managed by effective risk management framework with help of Company’s Supply Chain
Management Team and Central Purchasing Committee based on risk perception.
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2) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default of obligations by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and investments in mutual funds.
Trade Receivables:
The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of its customers, taking into account the current economic trend,
business challenges, historic trend of payments, bad debts & ageing of accounts receivables. The Company provides Passive

Telecom Infrastructure to Telecom Operators in India. During previous few years, all telecom companies faced increased pressure
on earnings and financing fronts, which in turn adversely impacted financing and fund—raising plans of tower companies.

The Company lost substantial number of tenancies in last decade, due to various events which were beyond management
control, such as shutdown/exit of major telecom operators including Aircel Group, Reliance Communications and Tata
Tele, Business combination of Vodafone & Idea (VIL), Telenor & Airtel, etc. The Company believes that it has binding long
term contractual lock in arrangements with Aircel/other customers and accordingly, continues to pursue its claim of
approx. ¥ 15,31,482 Lakhs arising out these developments. One of the customers, is not paying its monthly invoices
raised by the Company on time and delaying the same by Four/Five months. Even after continuous follow—up, apart from
making delayed payment, it is unilaterally making deductions. Additionally, due to long pending overdue and uncertainty
in collection the Company has already initiated the arbitration and recovery proceedings against the defaulting customers.
The leading operators have proposed to change in Energy billing mechanism from Fixed Energy Method to at Actuals.

The Company, as a part of its risk management plan, has proactively taken various measures including negotiations, legal
measures to recover its dues from defaulting operators. The Company is taking measures to ensure smooth operations
and contracted network time for customers which would enable the Company to keep the credit risk at moderate level.
The Company has also obtained security deposits from its customers which in turn mitigate the credit risk to that extent.

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio
of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analyzed. The Company fully provides for receivables outstanding for over 6 months unless collection is assured
. In certain cases, it also makes provisions for receivables outstanding for less than 6 months based on its estimates.

Financial instruments and Bank deposits
The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and service standards to
select the banks with which its balances and deposits are maintained. The Cash and Cash Equivalents balance includes
X 44,000 Lakhs as earmarked pursuant to Arbitration Award in favor of GTL Limited (Refer Note No.36) and X 13,277
Lakhs (Previous year X 13,591 Lakhs) earmarked towards Expenditure & Capex as per TRA mechanism. The Company
does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those required for its day—to—day operations.

3) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at reasonable price. Company’s
principal sources of liquidity are cash flows generated from its operations including deposits and advances received from
customers as a part of its contractual terms. In view of telecom sector developments affecting the Company, various
steps have been initiated by the Company to ensure that liquidity risk remains at low level.

The Company lost substantial number of tenancies in last decade, due to various events which were beyond management
control, such as shutdown / exit of major telecom customers including Aircel Group, Reliance Communications and Tata
Tele, Business combination of Vodafone & Idea (VIL), Telenor & Airtel, etc. The Company believes that it has binding
long term contractual lock in arrangements with Aircel/other operators and accordingly, continues to pursue its claim
of approximately ¥ 15,31,482 Lakhs arising out these developments. One of the Customers, is not paying its monthly
invoices raised by the Company on time and delaying the same by Four/Five months. Even after continuous follow—
up, apart from making delayed payment, it is unilaterally making deductions. Additionally, Other Customer has long
pending overdue and there is uncertainty in collection. The Company has already initiated the arbitration and recovery
proceedings against the defaulting customers.

The Company, in these circumstances, has proactively taken various steps to ensure smooth operations and contracted
network uptime for its existing customers, namely VIL, Reliance Jio, Bharti Airtel, BSNL etc. These steps include reduction
in fixed/semi variable costs including wages, electricity and diesel charges, operations and maintenance charges,
ground rent, terminating non—paying site after following contractual process, initiating arbitration for recovery of dues
etc. Further, the Company is in the process of re—negotiating its arrangements with existing vendors. These steps are
expected to enable the Company to remain EBITDA positive.
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One of the remaining secured lenders, who didn't assign its debt to EARC, allegedly claiming ¥ 64,638 Lakhs and has filed
proceedings before the National Company Law Tribunal (the “NCLT”) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”) vide its order dated November 18, 2022 has dismissed petition. The
said lender has filed an appeal against this order before National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (“NCLAT”). In the meantime,
EARC who is the lead lender of the Company has filed its Intervention Application and now matter is posted for hearing.

The Company is optimistic that various resource optimization initiatives under taken by the Company along with positive
developments in telecom sector can lead to stabilization and revival.

The below table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liability based on contractual cash flows:

< in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2024 Less ;';2': Wore ;';2': T
Interest bearing Loans & Borrowing* 6,16,446 90,712 7,07,158
(Including current maturities)
Lease Liability 9,726 46,382 56,107
Other financial liabilities 1,39,191 1,800 1,40,991
Trade Payables 3,207 — 3,207
As at March 31, 2023 Less ;rg; More ;rg; s
Interest bearing Loans & Borrowing* 5,12,904 1,51,083 6,63,987
(Including current maturities)
Lease liability 10,212 50,783 60,995
Other financial liabilities 1,30,056 2,023 1,32,079
Trade Payables 4,339 - 4,339

53. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, mandatorily convertible foreign
currency bonds, securities premium, all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure continuity of the operating activities of the Company.

The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding
requirement is met through internal accruals of the Company.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest—bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

54.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024.

ANALYTICAL RATIO’S:
Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31,2024 |March 31, 2023| % Variance [ Reason for variance
a) Current ratio [Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.11 0.10 6%
b) Debt—Equity |Total Debts Total Equity (Equity Share (1.39) (1.46) 5%  |Reduction in other equity
ratio capital + Other equity) due to loss for the year
c) Debt service |Earnings available for debt |Finance cost + principle 0.07 0.10 (31%) |Fall in EBIDTA due to
coverage ratio|service (Net profit after repayment of long term reduction in earnings
taxes + depreciation & borrowings during the year
amortization + Finance
cost + Non cash operating
items + other adjustment)
d) Return on Net profit after tax Average Total Equity (0.14) (0.50) 72%  |Reduction in loss for
equity ratio [(Opening Total Equity + the year
Total Equity)/2]
e) Inventory Revenue from sales of Average Inventory NA NA NA
turnover ratio |products [(opening balance+ closing
balance)/2]
f) Trade Revenue from operations |Average trade receivable 4.89 8.57 (43%)  [The average O/s period
receivables [(Opening balance + has increased during
turnover ratio closing balance)/2] the year
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Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31,2024 |March 31, 2023| % Variance [ Reason for variance
g) Trade Infrastructure & Average trade payable 0.63 0.94 (33%)  [Reduction in trade
payables Maintenance Cost [(Opening balance + payables
turnover ratio closing balance)/2]
h) Net capital ~ [Revenue from operations |Average Working capital (0.18) 0.21) 12%
turnover ratio [(Current asset —
Investments) — current
liabilities)]
i) Net profit Net profit after tax Revenue from operations (50%) (125%) 60%  [Reduction in losses due
ratio to comparative lower
impairment provisions
during the year
j) Returnon Profit Before interest & Tax [Total Equity + Total Debts+ 6% (49%) 113%  |Reduction in Other
capital Deferred Tax Liability equity due to: (i) fallin
employed impairment provisioning
for the year, (ii) Increase
in interest cost
k) Return on Interest Income on fixed  |Current investments + 7% 5% 31% [Change in NAV & Interest
investment  |deposits + Profit on sale of [Non—current Investments rate
investments + Fixed deposits with bank

55.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION:

There are no balances outstanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 except the following: (Rupees in Lakhs)

Nature of Opening Closing Balance Relationship,
Company . .
Transaction Balance if any
Rajaram Tomar Logistics Private Limited Payable 0.22 0.22 Not Applicable
Sailaja Business Private Limited Payable 0.43 0.23 Not Applicable
Yashada Chemicals Private Limited Payable - 0.52 Not Applicable

56.

97.

e The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

e The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b)
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

e The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(s), including entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) Provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

e The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income—tax Act, 1961.

e  No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

e The Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

The management and authorities have the power to amend Financial Statements in accordance with section 130 and 131 of
Companies Act, 2013.

GOING CONCERN:

The Company has from time to time informed about various developments in Indian Telecom Sector, which were beyond the control of
the Company and the management. The first set of issues included the landmark judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme Court cancelling
122 2G telecom licenses in February 2012 (including licenses of Uninor, Videocon, Etisalat, Idea and Tata), the Vodafone Tax issues,
the 3G auctions and the unsustainable debt accumulated by the telecom companies. All these factors led to mass exits of operators
and significant scale down by the remaining. As a result, majority of the Company’s telecom sites turned into single tenant sites.

Thereafter, the year 2017—18 has seen unprecedented shutting down of some of the major telecom operators such as Aircel
Group (then largest customer of the Company), Tata Teleservices, Reliance Communication, Shyam Sistema (merged with
Reliance Communication) and Telenor (merged with Airtel). These events were beyond the control of the management. The
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table below, clearly highlights the impact of tenancy loss the Company has faced over the last decade, despite having long
term binding contracts with telecom operators:

s Events of Tenancy Loss LG Period Comments
No. Tenancy
1. [Cancellation of 2G licenses 4,319 |Up to December 2017 Supreme Court Judgement

on cancellation of 122 2G
telecom licenses

2. |Slower 3G/BWA growth 4,750 |Since FY 2012-2013 Industry slowdown following
the Supreme Court verdict

3. |Operator scale back due to auction 3,500
4. |Aircel default of commitment of additional| 15,200 |[May 2014 Legal and financial issues
20,000 tenancies

5. |RCom shutdown of wireless business 1,386 |August & September 2017 |Unsustainable business due

6. |TATA exit from wireless business 2,910 |Since May 2017 to competition

7. |Merger of Vodafone — Idea (VIL) 3,250 |Since April 2018 Forced industry consolidation

8. |Consolidation of Telenor with Airtel 1,395 |During 201819 due to competition

9. |Aircel filing of bankruptcy 23,727 |January 2018 Unsustainable business due
to competition

10. [BSNL exits due to uncertainty of collection 1,767 |[Since FY 2018—19 Unsustainable business due

to competition

11 |Exit during business course with various other| 5,582 |Since April 2013
reasons

Aggregate tenancy loss from 2012 to 2024 67,786

Resultantly, these operators abandoned tower sites of the Company making more than 14,000 towers sites unoccupied,
which was more than 50% of the total tower portfolio. These discontinuing operators did not make any payment of their
contractual dues to the Company, including rent payable to landlords, statutory dues such as property tax, NA tax, local body
tax, employees’ dues and vendors’ claims etc., many of which are pass through payments for the Company. As a result,
the Company was saddled with substantial costs and liabilities including rents, vendors’ claims and statutory dues on such
unoccupied towers without any revenue.

This led to reduction in the revenue and a sharp decline in the Company’s EBITDA, plummeting from over X 1,10,000 Lakhs at
its peak to less than X 30,000 Lakhs, resulted in erosion of Company’s net worth and necessitating provision for impairment
of property, plant and equipment.

As a consequence of the above developments, there was an urgent need to right size the debt levels. At the time, the
majority of then lenders of the Company chose to assign their respective debts in favor of Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (“EARC”). The Company believed that once the assignment was completed, the debt would be restructured
to sustainable levels in a timely manner and accordingly, the Company presented multiple Resolution Plans starting from
April 2018 for consideration of lenders’ consortium updating such plans from time to time after taking into account various
developments in telecom sector affecting the business of the Company.

However, for reasons best known to the lenders, the said Resolution Plans submitted by the Company were never considered
by the lenders and also few lenders elected not to assign their respective debts to EARC. Further, a Techno—Economic Viability
study for better understanding of the realistic sustainable debt was not carried out.

Additionally, the Company has received notices of recall of loans from EARC and IDBI Bank claiming alleged default in terms
of Master Restructuring Agreement dated December 31, 2011. The Company has strongly refuted the claims as lenders were
fully aware that post ARC sell it was essential to restructure. In the meantime, lenders also liquidated shares pledged with
them, thereby appropriating I 3,401 Lakhs towards borrowings. The above events cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a Going Concern.
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Despite the above developments, there are following positive developments in telecom sector, which will lead to stabilizing
telecom sector:

1. Government of India has introduced new telecom policy that is expected to reform and simplify the regulatory and
licensing regime for telecommunications, even as it removes bottlenecks in creating telecom infrastructure, protects
users, and provides a four—tiered structure for dispute resolution.

2. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited is in process to launch 4G and 5G services in 2024, as part of the revival package which
was approved by the Government of India.

3. In March 2024, Vodafone Idea Limited’s shareholders approved a plan to raise X 45,00,000 lakhs for growth capex, of
which X 18,00,000 Lakhs has been raised through successful FPO in April 2024. VIL is expected to roll out 4G and 5G
sites to match footprint of its competitors.

4,  Bharti Airtel Limited and Reliance Jio Infocomm Limited continue to roll out new sites to penetrate their 5G network.
5. Hike in mobile call and data tariffs by telecom operators thereby increase in Average Revenue Per User (ARPU).

The above are clear indicators of a huge opportunity for Tower Co’s in India, as many new locations will be required for
capacity expansion and greenfield coverage across Pan India circles. In light of the same, the management of the Company
believes that the aforementioned events in telecom sector are positive developments which will lead to increased demand for
its towers and thereby increase in the revenue and EBITDA levels. The Company has already mapped its sites for proposed
4G/5G roll out by its customers.

Further, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”) vide its order dated November 18, 2022 has
dismissed petition filed by one of the secured lenders for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under
Section 7 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”). The Hon'ble NCLT observed in its order that the business of the
Company is sustainable, it is viable going concern under its current management and overall financial health of the Company
is not bad enough to be admitted under CIRP.

In addition to the above, various resource optimization initiatives undertaken by the Company, can lead to stabilization and
revival, The Company is also regular in payment of statutory dues, taxes, employee dues etc. Further, the Company also
continues to pursue contractual claims of approx. ¥ 15,31,482 Lakhs from various operators in respect of premature exits by
them in the lock in period.

Considering the above and as the Company do not have any intention to discontinue its operations or liquidate its assets, the
Company continues to prepare the books of account on Going Concern basis.

58. UNAUTHORIZED DISMANTLING/THEFT OF UNOCCUPIED SITES:

As stated in Note No. 57, the Company and the telecom sector as a whole, suffered a series of setbacks and existential
challenges over last decade. All these factors, which were beyond the control of the management and the Company, led to
either closing down of operations by telecom operators or consolidation among other telecom operators. Resultantly, despite
having long term contracts with the telecom operators, the Company lost around 67,786 tenancies since 2012 from such
discontinuing telecom operators.

The discontinuing operators abandoned tower sites of the Company making more than 14,000 towers sites unoccupied, which
was more than 50% of the total tower portfolio. Post abandonment of these towers, the discontinuing operators didn’t make
payment of their contractual dues including rent payable to landlords, statutory dues, employees’ dues and vendors’ claims
etc., many of which are pass through payments for the Company. As a result, the Company was saddled with substantial
costs and liabilities including rents, vendors’ claims and statutory dues on such unoccupied towers without any recovery. The
Company has already litigated with such discontinued operators to recover its contractual dues, which are amounting to more
than ¥ 15,31,482 Lakhs.

The Company, on monthly basis, has been requesting EARC being Monitoring Institution to allow payments due to the landlords
of the unoccupied sites, the same is yet to be approved by EARC. The Company had also attempted to salvage unoccupied
tower sites and accordingly resolution plans submitted by the Company included payment of rent to landowners, settlement
to vendors and employees. However, none of the resolution plans were considered by the lenders till date.

Due to non—receipt of the rental amounts, the disgruntled landowners have sent legal notices and filed various cases including
criminal cases against the Company and its officials. Moreover, many of the landowners blocked access to our Company’s
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employees to the sites. Exploiting such situations, unknown miscreants / disgruntled landowners have also resorted to
unauthorized dismantling / theft of towers and equipment’s attached thereto.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, 903 sites (Previous Year 2,932 sites) got dismantled out of the above unoccupied sites.
This has resulted into a loss (net off WDV of useful items taken to stores) of ¥ 641 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Previous year X 34,169 Lakhs) which is included in other expenses in the Financial Statements.

To mitigate the risk of dismantling and in order to protect its assets from such miscreants, the Company has already initiated
various steps which includes carrying out additional surveys, discussion with landowners, legal actions against such
miscreants, recovering site material, lodging of police complaints / FIR and insurance claim etc. Additionally, the Company has
proactively implemented Tower Vigilance Teams (TVT) in areas prone to theft to prevent the dismantling and theft of towers and
tower materials. This strategic deployment of TVT has yielded significant positive outcomes, with the Company successfully
curbing a high number of tower theft incidents. In few cases, thieves have been arrested by the police before unauthorized
dismantling and theft of towers / material. However, the risk of unauthorized dismantling and theft of towers and material
persists until the comprehensive resolution of unpaid liabilities on unoccupied towers is achieved.

59. The figures for the corresponding previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary, to make them
comparable.

60. These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 14, 2024.
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